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METROBANK
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (Metrobank) is a leading universal bank providing corporate 
and consumer banking products and services through its extensivenationwide branch network 

range of clients that includes large local and multinational corporations, middle market and 

TOYOTA
Incorporated on August 3, 1988, Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation (TMP) is the leading and 

robust sales distribution and service network, TMP achieved its 20th consecutive Triple Crown 

FEDERAL LAND

to the luxury and upper middle-income market segments with developments in prime 

AXA
AXA Philippines is one of the largest and fastest growing insurance companies in the country, 
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TOYOTA MOTOR CORPORATION (JAPAN)

AXA, S.A. (FRANCE)

MITSUI & CO., LTD. (JAPAN)

resources, infrastructure projects, motor vehicles, marine and aerospace, chemicals, energy, food resources, 

METRO PACIFIC INVESTMENTS CORPORATION

develop a diverse set of infrastructure assets through its investments in water utilities, toll roads, electricity 

TOYOTA FINANCIAL SERVICES CORPORATION (JAPAN)

ORIX CORPORATION (JAPAN)
Engages in non-depository credit intermediation such as leasing, installment loans, life insurance, and 

NOMURA REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT (JAPAN)
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SUMITOMO CORPORATION (JAPAN)

solutions, mobile communications, and Internet services, and operates TV shopping channels, supermarkets, 

business development, planning, production management, processing, logistics, and construction and real 

ISETAN MITSUKOSHI HOLDINGS (JAPAN)

GRAND HYATT HOTELS (USA)

MARCO POLO HOTELS (HONG KONG)

In the Visayas, Marco Polo Plaza Cebu provides a panoramic view of the city while still accessible from the 

JBA PHILIPPINES, INC.

undergoes a 935-point check to accomplish a Vehicle Information and Grading Sheet that summarizes the 

PREMIUM WARRANTY SERVICES PHILIPPINES, INC

an extensive 200-point vehicle inspection procedure covering exteriors, interiors, engine, transmission, and 

TOYOTA COROLLA SAPPORO PHILIPPINES
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Our Vision
To be a leading conglomerate, 
dominant in all sectors invested, 

Philippines, as a major contributor to 

Our Mission 

conglomerate with a strategic 

of leadership in the vital sectors 

assembly and distribution, insurance, 

infrastructure and utilities that are

It has earned its stature of 
prominence in these key sectors 
by blending local ingenuity and
resources with the technology and 

integrity, excellence, respect, and 

our mission to ensure long-term value 
for our stakeholders by creating a

contributing to our nation&#39;s 

Our Purpose

contributes to nation-building by 
providing world-class products and 

Our Values
Integrity

consistent adherence to ethical and 
moral values under all circumstances 
both from an institutional and 

are embedded in our corporate 
culture, which has earned for us the 

Excellence

Each of the group subsidiaries and 

consistently delivering excellence in 
all our products and services, resulting 
in the highest level of satisfaction to 
our customers and stakeholders, who 
account for our continued success 
and leadership in each of the sectors 

with the proper education, knowledge, 

out their respective roles and 
responsibilities within the Group to the 

and capability as an organization have 
allowed us to become one of the most 
credible and trusted conglomerates 
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Respect

We take a special regard for the 
individual, for their empowerment, 
and for the diversity of opinions, 
resulting in a more balanced view of 
our business proposition, open to

challenging assumptions and revisiting 
previously set ways, within the 
framework of a shared vision and 
a shared corporate culture, with 
the end objective of constant 

Sustainable Value Creation 

the seeds today that will result in
the creation of sustainable 

We believe that taking a long-
term and sustainable perspective 
is essential to contributing to 

Contents
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+30%
YoY

+68%
YoY

+48%
YoY

Consolidated Financial Highlights

Total Assets
(in Php Billion)

35
7.7 38

5.
0

39
7.

8

Total Revenues
(in Php Billion)

22
2.

9

13
4.

4

17
4.

6

Total Equity 

Shareholders
(in Php Billion)

17
7.5 18
3.

3

19
4.

0

Consolidated 
Net Income
(in Php Billion)

20
.3

6.
5

11
.0

Book Value of 
Common Shares
(in Php)

77
1.

07

79
8.

15

84
8.

06

Core Net Income
(in Php Billion)

15
.8

7.4

11
.0

+3%
YoY +6%

YoY
+6%
YoY
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In Php Billion,
 unless otherwise stated 2021 2020 2019

Consolidated Net Income 11.0 6.5 20.3

Core Net Income 11.0 7.4 15.8

Total Revenues 174.6 134.4 222.9

Earnings Before Interest and Taxes 
(EBIT)

20.4 14.6 34.5

EBITDA 22.6 17.1 32.9

EBITDA Margin 
(in %)

12.9% 13.2% 12.8%

Total Assets 397. 8 385.0 357.7

Total Liabilities 192.7 192.8 168.3

Total Equity 205.1 192.2 189.3

Shareholders
194.0 183.3 177.5

Earnings per share (in Php) 48.28 27.67 91.60

Book Value of Common Shares (in Php) 848.06 798.15 771.07

Current Ratio (x) 2.37 1.76 2.13

D/E Ratio (x) 0.70 0.76 0.67

Return on Average Assets (ROAA) (in %) 2.81% 1.76% 5.68%

Return on Average Equity (ROAE) (in %)   5.82% 3.63% 12.18%
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Chairman’s Message 

Strength in 
Adaptability

maintaining health and safety protocols, businesses and 

and gradually increase capacity as daily infections 
were controlled and the impact of the pandemic was 

 
Given the increased mobility and gradual reopening 
of the economy, the Philippines registered an 

 

with the resumption of construction activities of the 

 

to the global supply chain disruptions and the increase 

Dear fellow shareholders,

 
Within this backdrop, our key sectors were able to 

remained resilient and continued providing essential 

already peaked during the height of the pandemic and 

central bank maintained its accommodative monetary 

Improved mobility restrictions and consumer 

Toyota Motor Philippines recently achieved a key 

with the resumption of construction activities and the 

Insurance Commission (IC) and its regulated companies 
in utilizing digital tools to ensure the resilience of the 
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ARTHUR V. TY
Chairman

CARMELO MARIA LUZA BAUTISTA
President
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Expectedly, the infrastructure and utilities sector also 

demand for power and water, and increased capacity in 

 

auto sales from Toyota Motor Philippines, robust real 
estate sales from Federal Land, as well as higher 

commitment to all our stakeholders, our component 
companies received multiple distinguished awards in 

Banker cited Metrobank as the Strongest Bank in 

Best High-Rise Development in the Philippines at the 

was cited as a Highly Commended Lifestyle Developer 

GT Capital was recognized as the Best Investor Relations 
Company in the Philippines by three international 
institutions, The Global Economics, World Business 

company was also awarded as the Grand Winner of the 
Executive Leadership Team of the Year category in the 

 

Responding and Adopting to the Pandemic
 
Since the pandemic began in the Philippines in 2020, 
we wasted no time in helping our fellow countrymen as 

Metrobank Foundation, allocated resources to various 

operation of several molecular laboratories capable of 

 

our employees to work from home during periods 

 

 

donated to the Philippine Red Cross and the Makati 

vaccines were donated to the Pasay, Marikina, Cavite, 

being a force for social good and will continue to do so 

 
The Road Toward 2022 and Beyond
 

and other measures to ensure the resilience of our 
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disruptions and downturns caused by the recession 

thrive under various economic conditions and emerge 

 

primary objective was to serve as the investment 

our existing businesses, created synergies between 
our various component companies, and ventured into 

companies have claimed and maintained top tier 

our core values of Integrity, Excellence, Respect, and 

of solid growth and steady value creation, there are still 

for GT Capital, and for the sectors in which we are 

 

These strategies will be focused around the core 
businesses of the Group where there are still numerous 

 
Due to its prudent risk management, Metrobank is now 

growth, a recovery in net interest margins, and digital 

strategy, Toyota Motor Philippines is expected to launch 

 

development businesses through Federal Land, and 
expect this to become the next high growth engine of 

with Nomura Real Estate, under Federal Land NRE 
Global, we intend to unlock the value of our sizeable 
land bank by developing mixed-use, master-planned 

 
The local insurance industry remains underpenetrated, 

new innovative products that cater to the constantly 

see value in the essential infrastructure projects of 

enhance its ESG practices and we continue to explore 
areas to align and synergize best practices across the 

 

commodity prices, we look forward to 2022 with 
reasonable optimism as we take on new growth 

towards establishing synergies across our component 
companies, exploring new growth sectors, and 
expanding our value chain in the existing segments 

on the strong foundation that we have built together, 
we will continue to strive for consistent growth and 

 
We thank our dedicated employees, management, 

we will continue to rely on our strength in adaptability 
to adjust to the ever-changing conditions presented to 

of being a key contributor to nation-building and a 
world-class conglomerate, providing the best products 

Sincerely yours,

Chairman

Carmelo Maria Luza Bautista
President
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Banking

Through its prudent risk management strategy and sustained 
digitalization initiatives, Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 

disruption caused by the ongoing pandemic. Metrobank monitored 
economic conditions closely, while implementing the necessary 

strategies to adapt to the market and continuing to provide 
essential banking services to its clients.

Banking 
in a Digital

World
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+60%
Net Income 

Growth

ARTHUR V. TY
Chairman 

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company

FABIAN S. DEE
President

 Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company

CASA Deposits
(in Php Billion)

1,
07

7.5 1,
31

1.
0

1,
46

2.
7

Total Deposits
(in Php Billion)

1,
71

4.
1

1,
79

7.
2

1,
93

0.
3

(in Php Billion)

1,
48

5.
6

1,
29

7.
3

1,
27

9.
5

Non-Interest Income
(in Php Billion)

29
.9 35

.8

26
.4

Net Interest Income
(in Php Billion)

77
.0 86

.1

75
.0

Total Assets
(in Php Billion)

2,
45

0.
8

2,
45

5.
2

2,
50

2.
8

Consolidated Net Income
(in Php Billion)

28
.1

13
.8

22
.2

Capital Adequacy Ratio

17
.5 20

.2

20
.1
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reduction in provisions for credit and impairment losses for 

Retaining its position as one of the largest banks in the 

Banking

driven by asset management and trust fees, which rose 
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the Board of Directors approved a new dividend policy 

Continuing Pandemic Response

such, Metrobank ensured that its customers continued 
to have access to all its essential banking services by 
implementing its Business Continuity Plan (BCP) protocols, 

Emergency and Disaster Response Plan for Infectious 
Disease, which heightened precautionary measures and 

at the workplace, through regular disinfection of common 

Metrobank also implemented mask mandates and 
social distancing, in accordance with the best practices 

in place alternative communication channels that allow 

remained available during the pandemic and enabled 

immunity, Metrobank, together with GT Capital, carried out 
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Awards

unwavering commitment to its customers and stakeholders, 

The Asian Banker cited Metrobank as the Strongest Bank 
in the Philippines in 2021.

pandemic, which were the key factors that bolstered its 

The Asiamoney Best Bank Awards 2021, in turn, recognized 
 hailed the 

company as the 

The 2021 Asset Benchmark Research Awards also 
recognized Metrobank as the 

income house

the Secondary Market,” both in corporate and government 

Metrobank was also given several prestigious awards by 
the 
Group)

Cesar E.A. Virata Award for Best Securities 
House in the Banking category. This was the eighth 

In recognition of its exemplary data privacy initiatives and 
practices, Metrobank was named as one of the Outstanding 
Personal Information Controllers of 2021 in the Private 

data privacy practices incorporate a customer-centric 
approach, thus promoting visibility and transparency in all 
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Awards
• The Asian Banker, Strongest Bank in the Philippines

•  Asiamoney, Best Domestic Bank in the Philippines

•  2021 Annual Philippine Dealing System Awards
  •  
   (Bank Category) 
  • 
  • 
  • 
•  The Asset Benchmark Research Awards 2021 – 
 Asian Local Currency Bond
  • 

  • 

  • 

  • 
   Corporate bonds, Php (Rank 3)

•  The Asset Best Local Currency Bond Individuals
  • 
  • Best Local Currency Bond Individuals #2 & #3 in Sales
  • Best Local Currency Bond Individuals #4 in Research

•  The Bureau of Treasury, Top GSED-Market Maker

•  2021 Fund Managers Association of the Philippines 
 Bankers and Brokers Awards
  • Best Fixed Income Trader (Local)
  • Best Fixed Income Trader (Foreign) (Rank 2)
  • Best Fixed Income Sales (Rank 2)
  • Best Fixed Income Strategist (Rank 3)

•  2021 Global Retail Banking Innovation Awards Best New   
 Product Launch of the Year for Payments 

•  LinkedIn Talent Awards, Best Talent Acquisition Team 
 (above 1000 employees) Finalist, 

•  LinkedIn 8th Best Workplace to Grow Your Career –   
 Philippines 

•  Bronze Stevie® Award in the Corporate & Community- 
 Customer Engagement Event category, 18th Annual   
 International Business Awards

•  League of Corporate Foundations Outstanding CSR   
 Collaboration Project, CSR Guild Awards

•  Outstanding Personal Information Controllers, Privacy   
 Awareness Week Awards of the National Privacy    
 Commission (NPC)

j ,

• Outstanding Personal Information Controllers, Privaccy
Awareness Week Awards of the NNatatioonal Privacy  
Commission (NPC)))))
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Automotive Assembly, 

Coming out of a globally challenging year in 2020, the Philippine 

restrictions were eased, the country’s economy rebounded, and 
the government’s vaccination program was rolled out. 

Under those conditions and as in previous years, Toyota Motor 
Philippines Corporation (TMP) remained the most dominant 

automotive assembler and distributor, with the widest vehicle 

Driven 
to 
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Retail Vehicle Sales
(in units)

16
2,

01
1

10
0,

01
9

12
9,

66
7

Total Assets
(in Php Billion)

38
.8

45
.1

44
.9

Revenues
(in Php Billion)

16
8.

6

99
.8

13
1.

3

Total Equity
(in Php Billion)

15
.6

9.
5

12
.9

Net Income ATP
(in Php Billion)

9.1

3.
3

6.
0

Number of 
Dealerships

71 71 73

ALFRED V. TY
Chairman 

Toyota Motor Philippines

ATSUSHIRO OKAMOTO
President

Toyota Motor Philippines

+82%
Net Income 

Growth
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global supply chain disruptions, and the imposition 

TMP reduced the impact of the aforementioned external 

Automotive Assembly, 

Sustained Market Leadership
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New Model Launches

seven new product launches, including four all-new GR-

The Innova is the best-selling multi-purpose vehicle of 

the new Innova comes in six diesel engine variants and 

symbolizes the development of the vehicle guided by 

focused on specialized research and production of cars 

In July, TMP launched the new GR Yaris, a model built by 

four-wheel drive system makes the GR Yaris competitive 

Land Cruiser (300 series) was brought into the country by 

In December, TMP launched the new Toyota Camry, the 
latest addition to its growing Hybrid Electric Vehicle (HEV) 

HEV technology and carries the innovative concepts also 

introduction of the new Camry to the Philippine market 

pivoting towards new mobility initiatives and expanding its 

Strategic Initiatives in 2021

product line-up, its strong brand value, and its nationwide 
dealership network, complemented by its ability to provide 

TMP to overcome the challenges of an automotive 
industry disrupted by the continuing pandemic and helped 
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its line of products and services to tap into new markets 

Connected Service, a GPS-based system designed 

owners and operators in managing vehicle assets and 

Toyota took another step forward by launching the Fleet 

TMP also released an upgraded version of its myToyota 
mobile application that allows users to explore the 

book service appointments, purchase vehicle upgrades 
and packages, and get access to other services, such as 

information and services they need from vehicle purchase 

Racing Vios Cup, the exciting event made a historic 

Some 24 autocross racers and 30 circuit racers across 
three classes competed in the program, which was held at 

with the launch of two new dealerships in Dipolog City, 

TMP has continued its commitment to local assembly 

initiative designed to enhance the capability and regional 

production and sales level for its Vios model enrolled in 

In September, TMP inaugurated its Batangas Vehicle 

RFID-tagging technology for real-time vehicle tracking, 

Continuing Covid-19 measures

restrictions were loosened considerably during the year, 
TMP continued to implement health protocols to ensure 
that employees and customers are safe inside TMP 

Physical distancing, disinfection, and the mandatory use 
of face masks and face shields continued to be strictly 

is accessed through the TMP website and allows customers 

TMP continues to dominate the Philippine automotive 

and unwavering pursuit of number one customer 

Automotive Assembly, 
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The easing of pandemic-related restrictions, along with increased 

encouraging rebound as construction, sales, and marketing 
activities picked up.

Keeping 
You

In Mind
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Real Estate Sales
(in Php Billion)

9.
8

6.
5 7.

2

Total Assets
(in Php Billion)

92
.3

 10
9.

4

11
3.

5

Revenues
(in Php Billion)

13
.2

9.
3 10

.4

to Equity Holders
(in Php Billion)

37
.0

36
.9

37
.2

Net Income
(in Php Billion)

1.
6

0.
6

1.
0

Reservation Sales
(in Php Billion)

24
.2

14
.2

10
.6

ALFRED V. TY
Chairman

Federal Land, Inc.

WILLIAM THOMAS F. MIRASOL
President

Federal Land, Inc.

+57%
Net Income  

Growth
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on its digital sales and marketing initiatives that ensured 

company thus continued to conduct and enhance its 

and engagements, and online reservation and payment 

conditions, Federal Land recorded total revenues of 

by sustained construction activity, higher workforce 

Expectedly, reservation sales improved during months of 

Federal Land maintained health and safety protocols that 
were established during the height of the pandemic in 
2020, given that these measures successfully mitigated 

disinfection, the use of hand sanitizers, temperature 

checks, face mask mandates, and social distancing were 

To ensure that its employees complied with the 
established health protocols, Federal Land formed its 

with making sure that infection-mitigation policies and 
practices were sustained throughout the pandemic and 
that employees were well-informed of their responsibilities 

Residences, The Seasons Residences, The Grand Midori 

With face-to-face interaction limited by government 
restrictions, Federal Land found other ways to engage its 

highly diverse topics such as luxury living and lifestyle, 

for modern living, and most notably, the Filipino-Japanese 
architecture forum with renowned architect Paul Tange, 
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More webinars are lined up for Federal Land Conversations 

the latest design trends and hacks, personal and career 
growth, and creating live-work spaces at home to balance 

as Federal Land, Horizon Land, and other joint ventures, 

standardization that add value to the organization 

conducted a brand health assessment to evaluate its 

In line with this, Federal Land improved its services through 
personnel training, campaign materials, and digital 
infrastructure, among others, to improve its operational 

streamlined its operations to ensure projects are launched 
on time, development designs are planned based on 
customer needs, and product pricing is based on market 

empowered its senior management team to lead the 

restructuring revitalized the company as it streamlined 

and reliability, Federal Land garnered several awards in 

four-tower integrated-use development is a joint venture
between Federal Land, Nomura Real Estate, and Isetan 

maintenance and repairs, air-washing tiles that minimizes 

This signature development sets a new global standard 

achievement by companies operating in all sectors of the 

given annually to the top ten developers and architects with 
the greatest aggregate value of projects under construction 

economic reopening, and improved market conditions, 
Federal Land expects to launch new projects in 2022 and 
utilize its sizeable land bank in key growth areas in the 

Siena Towers, Marikina
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Life and General Insurance

Given the country’s economic recovery and the government’s 

Philippine insurance industry grew by 22% to Php374.7 billion in 
total premiums in 2021 from Php308.3 billion the previous year.  

and Philippine insurance companies in utilizing digital tools 
and other measures to ensure the resilience of the sector 

Live the Life 
You 

Choose
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SOLOMON S. CUA
Chairman

AXA Philippines

RAHUL HORA
President

AXA Philippines

+19%
Gross Premium

Growth

Life Premium Income
(in Php Billion)

26
.5

31
.6

39
.3

Exclusive Financial 
Advisors

7,0
65 7,8

56

6,
23

8

Annualized Premium 
Equivalent
(in Php Billion)

6.
8

5.
2

6.
2

Total Assets 
(Life Insurance)
(in Php Billion)

13
2.

3

14
6.

5 17
0.

1

Consolidated 
Net Income
(in Php Billion)

2.
4

2.
9

2.
3

Total Equity 
(Life Insurance)
(in Php Billion)

13
.0

13
.1

13
.2

Net Income 
(Life Insurance)
(in Php Billion)

3.
4

2.
8

2.
8

Premium Margin
(in Php Billion)

9.1

8.
4

7.
8
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LIfe and General Insurance

of a substantial increase in single premium unit-linked 

Covid-19-Related Initiatives

their vaccine expenses for up to Php5,000 on top of other 

vigilant in protecting its customers, employees, and 

to continue working from home as an ongoing safety 
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operations were sustained while employees and agents 
worked from home, the company continued to utilize the 

communicate with customers and provide them with clear 

Continued Strategic Initiatives in 2021

services to its customers despite the disruption caused by 

The company encouraged its policyholders and other 

functions and features that addressed the needs of the 

free access to emergency services, including ambulance, 

internal campaign that encouraged its employees to 

individuals and families to protect themselves from 

medical needs through a modest monthly or annual 

health insurance plan that provides coverage for the top 

has a variant with built-in coverage for the child of the 
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given the recent destructive weather disturbances and 

program that provides women with work, while enabling 

Awards and Recognitions in 2021

for over 40 years, pioneering iconic work and forging many 

a Quill award under the Communication Skills category, for 

can manage the hiring process through all recruitment 

LIfe and General Insurance
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the local insurance industry to have a seamless end-to-

to the sales and distribution recruitment experience 

features is the automation and digitalization of all four 

Philippines, were also recognized for good corporate 

the Institute of Corporate Directors, a non-stock, not-for-

International General Insurer of the Year (Philippines) and 

company was lauded for its ability to ramp up its services 
amid the challenges brought on by the pandemic, and for 
serving its customers in a new environment via new and 

new functionalities to the app in the past year to make 

ability to provide innovative solutions to its customers 
and other stakeholders, has allowed the company to 

lives and investments of Filipinos through relevant product 
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Infrastructure and Utilities

essential infrastructure and utilities services in the country. Given 

Corporation (MPIC) delivered stronger results during the period.

Our Progress 
is Yours
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MANUEL V. PANGILINAN
Chairman and President

Share of Operating 
Income
(in Php Billion)

20
.9

15
.4 17

.1

Water - Billed Volume
(in millions of cubic meters 
per day)

53
5

53
6

52
0

Core Net Income
(in Php Billion)

15
.6

10
.2 12

.3

Power - Energy Sales

51
,6

89

48
,5

01

46
,0

73

Total Assets
(in Php Billion)

61
1.

8

61
7.8

58
4.

3

Toll Roads - Average 
Daily Vehicle Entries
(Philippines)

53
6,

85
0

38
8,

82
0

48
3,

17
0

(in Php Billion)

23
.9

4.
7

10
.1

Hospitals - Number 
of Patients Served
(in Millions)

4.
1

2.
6

3.
2

113%
Net Income 

Growth
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Infrastructure and Utilities

on its toll roads and higher volume of electricity sold by 

Corporate Recovery and Tax Incentives for Enterprises 

The contribution of the power business, through Meralco, 

from-home and remote learning arrangements during the 

GWh driven by the reopening of business establishments, 

related activities picked up, while plant capacities 

Tollways Corporation (MPTC) saw the average daily 

construction of the eight-kilometer NLEX-SLEX Connector 

Moreover, the central span of the Cebu-Cordova Link 
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In order to accelerate the development of its toll road 

distribution business, saw a decline in its contribution 

million Julian Modular Treatment Plant, which will produce 
four million liters of water per day (MLD) once it becomes 

projects are ongoing, of which 43 MLD will be made 
available by mid-2022 in anticipation of water supply 

hospitals, six provincial cancer radiotherapy centers, two 

coming years and will continue providing essential 
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Metrobank Foundation, Inc. (MBFI) is the corporate philanthropic 
arm of the Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (Metrobank). The 

foundation endeavors to continue its advocacy of social development 
and nation-building, as espoused by the late GT Capital and Metrobank 

at the core of sustaining communities through various corporate 

Rekindling 
Hope
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ARTHUR V. TY
Chairman 

Metrobank Foundation, Inc.

ANICETO M. SOBREPEÑA
President

Metrobank Foundation, Inc.

2021 ACCOMPLISHMENTS IN NUMBERS

190,719 individuals assisted under the 

thrusts of its grants program. Health 142,830 
Education 46,592 Livelihood 1,297

P7.5M total amount 
of donation for disaster 
response

72 
companies and organizations 
in celebration of the 2021 
National Teachers’ Month

8 

More than P42.9M 

to 32 social development 

127, 830 individuals 

programs, food distributions, 
and community pantries

85,830 individuals 

assisted

328,116 individuals for its 
grants program 192,330 health 
48,659 education 1,297 livelihood 
85,830 calamity assistance  

10 Metrobank Foundation 
Outstanding Filipinos awarded 
(4 teachers, 3 soldiers, 
3

18,357 registered 
7 MMC 

SOLVE webinars

451 
50 elementary students, 150 secondary 
students, 131 tech-voc students, 
120 college students
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out various corporate social responsibility programs that 

advocacies to empower learners and educators, and 
development assistance to reach out to marginalized and 

various initiatives that address crucial public health issues 

Metrobank Foundation Outstanding Filipinos

This highly prestigious award was given to four teachers, 

Rekindling Hope

National High School Main in Muntinlupa City; Maria 

Charge, Civil Military Operations Tactical Operations Group 

Relations PNCO, Bogo City Police Station, Cebu; Police 

Talisay City Police Station, Cebu; and Police Lieutenant 
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The awardees were chosen and interviewed by a multi-
sectoral Final Board of Judges chaired by Senator Nancy 

st District of Quirino Representative, 

and the House of Representatives passed in hybrid 

secretaries, as well as key personalities from the private 
or business sector, extended their commendations to the 

PSBank, the Rotary Club of Makati Metro (RCMM), and the 

and creativity through its annual excellence recognition 

the expansive realm of creativity and transpose their 
spectrum of ideas into works that mirror the human 
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Canvas Category; 77 entries for the Water Media on Paper 

With mobility and event restrictions still in place during the 

Recognition Program received a prize of Php500,000 each, 

and two for the Sculpture Recognition Program were 
conferred with the Special Citation, and each given a prize 

physical exhibit and awarding ceremonies to the digital 

Rekindling Hope
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culture in public schools; collaborative feeding programs, 
meals distribution, and supplemental aid to community 

projects; and special interventions to cushion the impact 

It has been an annual tradition that during its anniversary 
celebration, Metrobank holds donation turnover rites as a 

Grants Turnover” to honor and perpetuate the legacy of 

turnover is one venue where MBFI can continue to carry 
on his values through programs and projects of social 

free food and other essential items for families whose 

was to provide supplemental aid, so that the pantries 
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with the Society of Jesuit-run Tanging Yaman Foundation, 

Tanging Yaman Foundation enabled MBFI to source 

sectors in helping feed those who continue to live hand-

with several groups over the years to provide food packs to 

For one, the Foundation joined the Task Force Zero 

and municipalities in the National Capital Region, Regions 

 
Possessing a strong spirit of giving, Metrobank employees 

distribution of rice and vegetable packs to families in 

amount and with the help of Tanging Yaman Foundation, 

Cavite, Laguna, Cebu, Iloilo, Leyte, Bohol, Cagayan de Oro, 

 
Food assistance continued until the holiday season 

 

International Ministry Philippines, an organization that 
has long been providing nutritious hot meals to several 

Rekindling Hope
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Safer Schools through Water, Sanitation, 
and Hygiene

In its initiative to protect the health, safety, and well-being 
of students, teachers, and school personnel, especially 

Vision Development Foundation to construct water, 
sanitation, and hygiene (WaSH) facilities in Denuyan 
Elementary School, Dumpilas Elementary School, 
Paranglumba Elementary School, and Tulohon Elementary 

Education Programs

underprivileged and academically outstanding student 

Math Challenge (MMC) in the last 2 years, MBFI launched 

program aims to share supplementary contents on math 

are shared in the page including webinars called SOLVE 

nd season of SOLVE 
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the other hand, rallied with the nation to pay tribute to 

future” as a nod to the dedication of teachers, mentors, 
and coaches to bridge gaps and push for the continuity of 

 
 

organizations from the government, business, academe, 
media, civil society, and other industries, which are 

the years, thereby becoming the nationwide movement 

The NTM Coordinating Council contributed to Brigada 
Pagbasa–a national movement to promote literacy led by 

capability of teachers in reading and comprehension, 

Foundation, MBFI donated risograph machines to selected 
schools, and led in encouraging the private sector to 

 

Rekindling Hope
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learning tools to promote personal and professional 

The NTM culminating celebration was held on October 
5 which coincided with the observance of National 

 
2021 Bags of Blessing

been working together to distribute Bags of Blessing 

Filipinos to share in the blessings of the Chinese New Year 

For its 9th year, in celebration of the year of the Metal 

the ongoing pandemic, survivors of recent calamities, 
members of Indigenous Peoples (IPs) tribes, and select 
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‘Helping Hands’ Disaster Response

a helping hand to victims of natural disasters through 

families in Ilocos Sur, Cagayan, and Benguet, areas highly 

Through Metrobank branches, namely Candon, Tagudin, 
Vigan, and Vigan-Market, and the local PHC chapters, 

before the year ended, both MBFI and GTFI extended 

Palawan, Bohol, Cebu, Negros Occidental, Negros Oriental, 

million, several assistance tracks coursed through PHC, 

Caritas Philippines, Caritas Manila, Federation of Filipino 

 

Philippine General Hospital (PGH) Medical Foundation, 

reconstruction, which includes the purchase of autoclave 

Metrobank Foundation Professorial Chair

Foundation Professorial Chair event held in March at the 

Rekindling Hope
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in her lecture the crucial role of judicial education and 

Awards and Recognition 

Organized by the Public Relations Society of the 

in public relations and is awarded by distinguished multi-
sectoral jury to outstanding public relations programs and 

open in various cities, bringing together people to provide 

able to bring people together to a shared cause, show 
solidarity and provide hope and inspiration to Filipinos 

as the most prestigious career-service award in the 
Philippines, recognizing exemplary teachers, soldiers, and 

demonstrates its sustained commitment to honoring 
these public servants for their unwavering commitment to 

to an organization which garnered the greatest number of 

Year, the program unites employees of the Metrobank 
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the family foundation of the late GT Capital and Metrobank Group 

education and equitable healthcare are basic needs that should be 
made accessible to the underprivileged.

Strategic
Development 
Programs that 

Empower 
Communities
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Since its inception, the Foundation has pursued the 
philanthropic initiatives of the family by investing 
in strategic development programs that empower 
communities and respond to the basic needs of the Filipino 
people, primarily in the areas of health, education, livelihood, 

ongoing global health crisis, GTFI continued implementing 

2021 Bags of Blessing

volunteers from the GT Capital and Metrobank Group, assist 

program to allow the underprivileged and marginalized 
Filipinos to share in the blessings of the Chinese New Year 

For its 9th year, in celebration of the year of the Metal 

 

the ongoing pandemic, survivors of recent calamities, 
members of Indigenous Peoples (IPs) tribes, and select 

Given the mobility restrictions earlier in the year, GTFI 
implemented a voucher system to ensure the safe 
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distribution of the bags in line with the health and safety 

in select Robinsons Supermarket branches nationwide for 

GTFI Youth for Excellence and Service (GTFI-
YES) and Scholarship for Technical-Vocation 
Education Program (STEP) 

providing Filipino students nationwide with access to 

both the formal education and technical vocational 

Despite the ongoing pandemic, GTFI ensured that its 
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Completion of Classroom Projects in 

construction of two (2) one-storey classroom buildings, 

with Panay Energy Development Corporation and Cebu 

These one-storey, two-classroom buildings are in NJ Ingore 

currently using the classrooms as workstations to prepare 

Community Health Program

Community health has always been one of the advocacies 

is its continuous assistance to the corporate social 

patients, of which 253 were in-patients and 94 were in-

from gallstone removal and vision correction to surgical 

assistance for their children with disabilities through its 

Pagtitipon Program

In honor of the 3rd death anniversary of the GT Capital 

augmentation program aimed at paying tribute to and 

lifetime, was able to gather people together to help and 
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GT CAPITAL HOLDINGS, INC. 
PURPLE HEARTS CLUB

Despite the improved economic conditions 
and higher vaccination rate in the Philippines 
in 2021, the impact of the ongoing Covid-19 
pandemic is still being felt by many Filipinos 
to this day. Given this, GT Capital continued 
to pursue and implement its core corporate 
social responsibility (CSR) programs to provide 

As espoused by the late GT Capital Group 
Chairman, Dr. George Ty Siao Kian, the company 
takes pride in being a force for social good. 

company’s employee-driven CSR volunteer 
movement, kept its programs focused on three 
key areas: nutrition, education, and mitigating 

Community Pantry

and safety protocols, the goods were pre-packed and 

Nourishment Program and Donations to Parish

the pre-pandemic feeding program, packed lunch meals 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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also donated pre-loved items such as clothes, shoes, books, 

Covid-19 Vaccine Donations

Philippine Red Cross and the Makati and General Trias 
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TOYOTA MOTOR PHILIPPINES FOUNDATION

Toyota Motor Philippines (TMP) pursues its CSR 
projects through the Toyota Motor Philippines 
Foundation (TMPF). Its initiatives manifest the 

communities in which it operates. 

As mobility restrictions were eased in 2021, 
TMPF continued its various social and 
humanitarian projects focused on education, 
health, the environment, and community 
service.

Community Donations

TMP, through TMPF, donated sacks of rice and grocery 
packages to indigent families, whose livelihoods were 

donation were 225 resident families of Barangay Pulong 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Elementary School

Even during the height of the pandemic, TMPF remained 

To keep track of the overall health status of individuals 

complete blood count (CBC), urinalysis, fasting blood sugar 
(FBS), uric acid tests, visual acuity, and ECG for members of 

TMPF also helped the school maintain its operations 
throughout the health crisis, by providing laptop 

an event aimed to inspire and motivate the students to 

Protecting the Environment

TMP continued its environmental conservation campaign in 

Over 70 volunteers from TMP, Community Environment and 
Natural Resources (CENRO)-Calaca, Municipal Environment 
and Natural Resources (MENRO)-Lian, the local government 

a total of 20,000 mangrove propagules and collected 50 

The mangrove-planting and coastal-clean-up activities 

is in line with the Toyota Environmental Challenge 2050, 

TMP acknowledges that mangroves are essential because 
they improve biodiversity, serve as a barrier against storms, 

capture ten times more carbon dioxide than terrestrial 
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FEDERAL LAND, INC.

Federal Land, together with Gawad Kalinga 
Community Development Foundation, Inc. (GK), 
turned over 20 new homes to families in Horizon 
Land GK Village at Governor’s Drive, Dasmariñas, 
Cavite in April 2021.

Federal Land previously turned over hundreds 
of homes in several GK villages in Cavite, 
Iloilo, Capiz, Maguindanao, Tarlac, Laguna, and 

For this project, Federal Land donated Php4 
million to Gawad Kalinga to provide permanent 
home addresses to poor families in Dasmariñas, 

dynamic communities for generations to enjoy remains 

developing its master-planned communities that elevate 
the living standards of its customers, but also in socio-
civic programs that build a more resilient and sustainable 

Covid-19 Vaccine Donations

Federal Land provided free vaccines to all its employees 

With its commitment towards community development 
and nation-building, Federal Land joined the Metrobank 
Foundation and GT Capital Foundation in their drive to help 
at-risk youth and their families during Christmas through 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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masks, 44 gallons of alcohol, four packs of diapers, 30 

It works to reunite children and youth with their families 

of the Virlanie Foundation for many years as one of the 

Occidental Mindanao

Federal Land extended a helping hand to Manila Doctors 

from Occidental Mindoro to Manila for much needed 

and their companions to and from Manila, pre-operation 

that provides free cataract removal surgery, total 
thyroidectomy, cheiloplasty, and other vital surgeries 

successful medical mission conducted previously in 
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AXA PHILIPPINES

AXA Philippines sustained its CSR activities 

by the ongoing health crisis. The company 

companies to pursue and execute its CSR 
initiatives for the year.

programs on infection prevention and control, social 
mobilization and community engagement, caring for 

Habitat for Humanity: Education, Health, and 
Social Inclusion

Philippines to provide holistic community intervention to 

Towards a Plastic-free Community

program, which is a waste-to-cash program that provides 
women with work, while enabling them to make a positive 

waste collection are located in six of the largest malls in 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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AXA Week for Good

for Good, a volunteer program that celebrates the ability 

conducted by GreenSpacePilipinas, where they learned 
how to aid in the natural process of decomposition 
and recycling of organic material into a humus rich soil 

During that week, MakeSense, a global community that 
engages citizens, entrepreneurs, and organizations to build 
an inclusive and sustainable society, collaborated with 

Filipino public school students can have access to learning 

educated about the amount of waste in the digital world, 

photos, and videos, people could lessen the amount of 
carbon dioxide being released into the atmosphere, while 
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METRO PACIFIC INVESTMENTS FOUNDATION, INC.

main mission is to enhance the lives of the 
communities it serves through meaningful, 
long-term engagements. Despite the disruption 
caused by the ongoing health crisis, MPIF 
continued to conduct its CSR activities in 2021.

The Cordova Mangrove Center

Mangrove Propagation and Information Center in 

Corporation (CCLEC), and the local government of 

The Mangrove Propagation and Information Center is the 

The two-story facility will serve as the center for the 
protection and propagation of mangrove trees in the 
coastal areas, including the rehabilitation of degraded 

provide information for locals and visitors to appreciate 

During the inauguration of the mangrove center, 
MPIF also held the induction of the mangrove eco-
guides, where four individuals nominated by the local 
government handle the daily operations and maintenance 

the necessary orientations and tours for visitorsof 

individuals underwent a rigorous training program, where 

Marine Guards Program

Municipality of Medina, Misamis Oriental during the year 
through a sustainability assessment of its three-year-long 
Marine Protection, Inspection, and Conservation (MPIC) 

and monthly allowances, to serve as stewards of marine 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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responsibility to conduct foot and seaborne patrol, 
implement a monthly coastal clean-up in all coastal 

million for this program, which includes funds for capacity-

The program not only resulted in the increase and 

Bike for Livelihood

MPIF, along with the MVP Group of Companies, launched 

Metro Manila such as Pasig, Manila, Quezon City, Malabon, 

are primary tourist areas where many lost their jobs due 

will be used for alternative livelihood programs that aim to 

Puhunang Pangkabuhayan

project, MPIF donated bicycles, pocket Wi-Fi devices, and 
sewing machines for the establishment of alternative 

tools aimed to help displaced or out-of-work individuals by 

restrictions and lockdowns forced many employees to 
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The Puhunang Pangkabuhayan Project enabled and 

whose jobs were compromised by the pandemic, such 

project gave them the necessary means to recuperate 

the sewing machines, while the bicycles were allocated for 

of establishing alternative livelihood programs for the 

Corporate Social Responsibility
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Donation to the Tanging Yaman Foundation

MPIF, along with One Meralco Foundation and PLDT-

The program distributed eight tons of vegetables to the 

and augmented the income of the farmers from Benguet, 

Outreach Programs

MPIF provided relief packs to 300 households in Batangas 

contained canned goods, noodles, vegetables, and 

Moreover, throughout the year, MPIF provided donations 
to various communities in need, especially those who 

MPIF also donated grocery packs to 200 households in 

One Meralco Foundation, MPIC donated grocery packs and 

Tuloy Pa Rin ang Pasko

customized livelihood tools to various recipients, as well 
as the distribution of noche buena packs to waiters and 

During the entire month of December, MPIF distributed 

including the MPIC Guardians, as well as to tourism workers 
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Corporate Governance
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GT Capital Holdings, Inc. (“GT Capital” or the “Corporation”, and 
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), embraces healthy 
corporate governance practices in line with best standards 
in the Philippines and in the Association of Southeast Asian 
Nations (“ASEAN”) Region. In pursuit of its goal and in order 
to contribute to optimal long-term value creation for its 
stakeholders, GT Capital strives to ensure that considerable 

corporate governance to formalize best practices that 
implement and imbibe the spirit of the principles outlined 
in the Securities and Exchange Commission’s (“SEC”) Code 
of Corporate Governance for Publicly-Listed Companies and 

OECD Principles of Corporate Governance, and the ASEAN 
Corporate Governance Scorecard. 

corporate governance have garnered recognition in the 
investment community, both locally and in the ASEAN region. 

Best Investor Relations Team in the Philippines 
by The Global Economics

Best Investor Relations Team in the Philippines 
by Global Business Outlook

Best Investor Relations Team in the Philippines 
by World Business Outlook

Grand Winner of the Executive Leadership Award 
in the Asia CEO Awards

2021 Awards and Recognitions



 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

2021 Compliance
 

 
Corporate Governance Policies and Practices

Manual on Corporate Governance

 
Code of Ethics
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Code of Discipline of Employees and Anti-corruption 
Programs

Whistleblowing Policy
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Enterprise Risk Management

 
 

Risk Governance Structure

Key Business Risks and Controls

 

ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PROCESS
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Credit Risk

Market Risk

Liquidity Risk

Operational Risk

Regulatory Compliance Risk

Reputational Risk

Environmental and Social Risk

Other Risks
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Policies on Insider Trading

Procurement Policies

Board of Directors and Management

Board Composition
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Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

Name Position
No. of 
Meetings 

Chairman

Francisco C. Sebastian

Carmelo Maria Luza 
Bautista 

President and 
Director

Lead Independent 
Director

Wilfredo A. Paras
Independent 
Director

Rene J. Buenaventura
Independent 
Director

Pascual M. Garcia III*
Independent 
Director

Consuelo D. Garcia*
Independent 
Director

David T. Go Director
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Board Self-Assessment Criteria Director Self-Assessment Criteria

• Structure and Composition
• Roles and Accountability
• Board Process
• Board Dynamics

• Director Roles & Responsibilities

• Continuous education, development 
   and improvement
• Board Meetings

• Composition and Quality
• Meetings
• Duties and Responsibilities
• Working relationship with executives

 

Member Position Held in Meetings 

Chairman (Non-executive 
Director)

executive Director)

Francisco C. Sebastian Member (Non-executive 
Director)

Carmelo Maria Luza 
Bautista

Member (Executive 
Director)

Adviser (Non-executive)

Solomon S. Cua Adviser (Non-executive)
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Member

Chairman (Lead Independent Director) 

Rene J. Buenaventura Member (Independent Director)

Member (Director)

Member Position Held in Meetings 

Chairman (Lead 
Independent Director)

Wilfredo A. Paras Member (Independent 
Director)

Rene J. Buenaventura Member (Independent  
Director)

Carmelo Maria Luza 
Bautista

Adviser (Executive 
Director)

on Adequacy of GT Capital’s Internal Controls and Risk 
Management System 

Mr. Wilfredo A. Paras  

Mr. Rene J. Buenaventura

Member Position Held in Meetings 

Wilfredo A. Paras Chairman (Independent 
Director)

Member (Independent 
Director)

Rene J. Buenaventura Member (Independent 
Director)

Member (Non-executive 
Director)
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Member Meetings 

Rene J. Buenaventura Chairman (Independent 
Director)

Member (Lead Independent 
Director)

Wilfredo A. Paras Member (Independent 
Director)

David T. Go Member (Non-executive 
Director)

Consuelo D. Garcia* Member (Independent 
Director)

Member Position Held in Meetings 

Chairman (Lead 
Independent Director)

Wilfredo A. Paras Member (Independent 
Director)

Rene J. Buenaventura* Member (Independent 
Director) 

Adviser

Director and Executive Compensation

Remuneration 
Item

Executive 
Directors

Non-Executive 
Directors 
(other than 
independent 
directors)

Independent 
Directors

Per Diem 
Allowance million million 

Bonuses
million million 

-
million 
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 Remuneration Item Amount

(a) Salary

(b) Bonuses

Total Php   86.81 million

Orientation and Continuing Education Initiatives for Directors

Name of Director Title of Training Training Provider Date of Training

Annual Corporate 
Governance Training

Institute of Corporate Directors

Annual Corporate 
Governance Training

Institute of Corporate Directors

Francisco C. Sebastian
Annual Corporate

Governance Training
Institute of Corporate Directors

Carmelo Maria Luza Bautista Annual Corporate Governance Institute of Corporate Directors

Annual Corporate 
Governance Training

Institute of Corporate Directors

Wilfredo A. Paras
Annual Corporate 

Governance Training
Institute of Corporate Directors

Rene J. Buenaventura
Annual Corporate 

Governance Training
Institute of Corporate Directors

Consuelo D. Garcia
Annual Corporate 

Governance Training
Institute of Corporate Directors

David T. Go
Annual Corporate 

Governance Training
Institute of Corporate Directors

Pascual M. Garcia III ICD Masterclass Institute of Corporate Directors

Annual Corporate 
Governance Training

Institute of Corporate Directors
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Audit and Accounting

Internal Audit

Independent Public Accountants

Year

Aris C. Malantic

Miguel U. Ballelos, Jr.

2020 2021

Audit and Audit-Related Services 

Non-Audit Services 

Total  

Ownership Structure

Stockholders holding more than 5% of outstanding shares

Record Owner No. of Shares
Held

Percentage
( % )

Grand Titan Capital Holdings, Inc.

PCD Nominee Corp. (Non-
Filipino)

PCD Nominee Corp. (Filipino)
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Name Nature of 
Relationship to 
GT Capital

Number of Shares 
Directly Owned
(As of January 1, 
2021)

Number of Shares 
Indirectly Owned
(As of January 1, 
2021)

Number of Shares 
Directly Owned
(As of December 
31, 2021)

Number of Shares 
Indirectly Owned
(As of December 
31, 2021)

Grand Titan Capital 
Holdings, Inc. 

Principal 
Shareholder

Chairman

Alfred V. Ty

Francisco C. Sebastian

Treasurer

Carmelo Maria Luza 
Bautista

President and 
Executive Director

Alesandra T. Ty
Treasurer

Francisco H. Suarez, Jr.
President and 
Chief Finance 

Renato C. Valencia Lead Independent 
Director

Wilfredo A. Paras Independent 
Director

Farrah Lyra Q. De Ala
President

Reyna Rose P. Manon-
Og and Controller

David T. Go Non-Executive 
Director

Rene J. Buenaventura Independent 
Director

Regis V. Puno Non-Executive 
Director

Renee Lynn Miciano-
Atienza and Head, Legal & 

Compliance

Antonio V. Viray Corporate 
Secretary

Jocelyn Y. Kho Assistant 
Corporate 
Secretary

78 G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Vicente Jose S. Socco
President

Jose B. Crisol, Jr.
President and 
Head, Investor 
Relations and 
Corporate 
Communications

Joyce B. De Leon
and Chief Risk 

Leo Paul C. Maagma
and Chief Audit 
Executive

Susan E. Cornelio
and Head, Human 
Resources and 
Administration

Don David C. Asuncion

Stakeholder Relations

Employee Relations

Name Nature of 
Relationship to 
GT Capital

Number of Shares 
Directly Owned
(As of January 1, 
2021)

Number of Shares 
Indirectly Owned
(As of January 1, 
2021)

Number of Shares 
Directly Owned
(As of December 
31, 2021)

Number of Shares 
Indirectly Owned
(As of December 
31, 2021)
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Activity Employees

Emergency grab bags

Human Capital Development Initiatives

Conqueror’s Fitness Challenge  7

Cooking Lesson  6

Mental Health in the Workplace workshop

WFH Arrangement

Mindfulness Workshop (Yoga)

Training and Developmental Programs 
for Employees

Senior Management Training

Name Date Program

Francisco H. Suarez, Jr.

Macquarie Philippines’ Owners Day

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Regis CEO Roundtable with CMLB

Nomura Investment Forum Asia

Macquarie Group Call feat. Mr. Toto Tansingco of Metrobank

MBTC Awards Forum
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Risk Culture Building

Leading Extraordinary Times with Lance Gokongwei

Risk Culture Building

Regis Reverse Roadshow: GT Capital with First State Investment

Vicente Jose S. Socco Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Jose B. Crisol, Jr.

Macquarie Philippines’ Owners Day

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Regis CEO Roundtable with CMLB

MPIC Annual Shareholders’ Meeting

Nomura Investment Forum Asia

Macquarie Group Call feat. Mr. Toto Tansingco of Metrobank

MBTC Awards Forum

Regis Reverse Roadshow: GT Capital with First State Investment

Stephen John S. Comia

Joyce B. De Leon

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Recreate Leadership Branding (for women empowerment) organized by Ginny 

Name Date Program
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Developing Business Continuity Strategy

Crisis Management

Mental Health in the Workplace: Selected Mental Health Concerns during the 
Pandemic

Mental Health in the Workplace: Identifying Workplace Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Work Life Balance

Mental Health in the Workplace: Cultivating Positivity in the Workplace

Reyna Rose P. Manon-Og

Navigating through the Recovery Webinar

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Advanced Balanced Scorecard

Webinar on Financial Institution Strategic Transfer (FIST) Act

The Rise of Digital Technology

Third Dialogue with the Icons

with the Transfer Pricing Regulations in the Philippines

GRI-SM ASEAN Sustainability E-Summit

Mental Health in the Workplace: Selected Mental Health Concerns during the 
Pandemic

Mental Health in the Workplace: Identifying Workplace Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Work Life Balance

Susan E. Cornelio Balanced Scorecard Basics

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Advanced Balanced Scorecard

PMAP Conference

Mental Health in the Workplace: Selected Mental Health Concerns during the 
Pandemic

Mental Health in the Workplace: Dealing with All these Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Identifying Workplace Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Work Life Balance

Leo Paul C. Maagma

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Renee Lynn M. Atienza

Name Date Program
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Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Technology Governance for Directors

Mental Health in the Workplace: Selected Mental Health Concerns during the 
Pandemic

Mental Health in the Workplace: Identifying Workplace Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Work Life Balance

Mandatory Continuing Legal Education

Don David C. Asuncion

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Farrah Lyra Q. De Ala

Mental Health in the Workplace: Selected Mental Health Concerns during the 
Pandemic

Mental Health in the Workplace: Dealing with All these Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Identifying Workplace Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Work Life Balance

Mental Health in the Workplace: Cultivating Positivity in the Workplace

Employee Training

Name Date Program

Macquarie Philippines’ Owners Day

Metrobank’s Advanced Corporate Governance Training

Regis CEO Roundtable with CMLB

Nomura Investment Forum Asia

Macquarie Group Call feat. Mr. Toto Tansingco of Metrobank

MBTC Awards Forum

Leading Extraordinary Times with Lance Gokongwei

Risk Culture Building

Regis Reverse Roadshow: GT Capital with First State Investment
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Recreate Leadership Branding (for women empowerment) 

Developing Business Continuity Strategy

Crisis Management

Navigating through the Recovery Webinar

Webinar on Financial Institution Strategic Transfer (FIST) Act

It’s okay to be not okay

The Rise of Digital Technology

Third Dialogue with the Icons

Transfer Pricing Webinar: Guidance on Prevalent Errors 

the Philippines

GRI-SM ASEAN Sustainability E-Summit

Balanced Scorecard Basics

Mental Health in the Workplace: Selected Mental Health Concerns 
during the Pandemic

Mental Health in the Workplace: Identifying Workplace Challenges

Mental Health in the Workplace: Work Life Balance

Mental Health in the Workplace: Cultivating Positivity in the 
Workplace

PMAP Conference

Submission (OST)

Technology Governance for Directors

Mandatory Continuing Legal Education

Succession Planning

Creditor Protection

•
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

Customer Welfare and Safety, Environment-
Friendly Value Chain and Interaction with 
Communities
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Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation

Challenge 3:

Challenge 4: 

Challenge 6:

Toyota Manila Bay Corporation

•

•  
 

 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 
 •
 •  
 •  
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Federal Land, Inc. 3. Promoting sustainable development

•
•
•
•

•

•

•

•

4. Interactions with the Community

Others 
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Shareholder Meetings and Dividend Policy

Year Per share Total amount (in millions)

577.79

Other Stakeholders and Investor Relations

JOSE B. CRISOL, JR.

BRUCE RICARDO O. LOPEZ

governance@gtcapital.com.ph.

Year Per share Total amount (in millions)

87Strength in Adaptability



Date Event Venue

Macquarie Philippines’ Owners Access Day

Regis CEO Roundtable

Nomura Investment Forum Asia

Regis Reverse Roadshow: GT Capital with First State Investment

GT Capital Strategic Planning Week

GT Capital Strategic Planning Plenary

December 9 Pasay City, Philippines

analysts
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Corporate Objectives and 
Non-Financial Indicators

Banking
Corporate Objectives
-  Maintain stronghold in commercial  
 banking and expand consumer 
 lending
-  Safeguard asset quality
-  Ensure  balance sheet strength,   
 customer protection, and employee  
 safety

Non-Financial Indicators

Automotive Assembly, 

Distribution
Corporate Objectives
- Launch of new models
- Expand dealership network

Non-Financial Indicators

 hybrid variant)

 in passenger car, commercial   
 vehicle, and overall retail unit sales
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Corporate Objectives
- Rationalize costs
- Build the brand
- Develop the organization

Non-Financial Indicators
- Rationalized project launches

 health assessment
- Customer service enhancements
- Organizational transformation and culture
 development

Insurance
Non-Financial Indicators

Life Insurance

Non-life Insurance

 PSBank branches

Corporate Objectives
Power:
-
 energy generation capacity across   
 multiple technologies in the next 5-7 years

Toll Roads

Light Rail

Non-Financial Indicators

 entries in the Philippines

 water volume

 

Infrastructure and Utilities
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Board of Directors

ARTHUR V. TY
Chairman

FRANCISCO C. SEBASTIAN
Co-Vice Chairman

ALFRED V. TY
Co-Vice Chairman
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MARY V. TY
Adviser to the Board

CARMELO MARIA LUZA BAUTISTA
Director / President

RENATO C. VALENCIA
Lead Independent Director
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Board of Directors

RENE J. BUENAVENTURA
Independent Director

CONSUELO  D. GARCIA
Independent Director

DR. DAVID T. GO
Director

ATTY. REGIS V. PUNO
Director
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PASCUAL M. GARCIA III
Director

GUILLERMO CO CHOA
Adviser to the Board

JAIME MIGUEL G. BELMONTE
Adviser to the Board

WILFREDO A. PARAS
Independent Director
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, 55 years old, Filipino, was elected as 
Chairman of GT Capital Holdings, Inc. in May 2016. Prior 
to this, he was the Corporation’s Vice Chairman since its 
inception in 2007 before assuming the Chairmanship in 
2012 up to June 2014. He was the President of Metropolitan 
Bank and Trust Company (Metrobank), a listed company, 
from 2006 to 2012 and was appointed as its Chairman in 
April 2012. He also serves as the Chairman of Metropolitan 
Bank (China) Ltd., Inc. and Metrobank Foundation, Inc.; 
Vice Chairman and Director of Philippine Savings Bank 
(PSBank), a listed company; and Vice Chairman of AXA 
Philippines. He is also a Director of Federal Land, Inc. He 
earned his Bachelor of Science degree in Economics from 
the University of California, Los Angeles and obtained his 
Master in Business Administration degree from Columbia 
University, New York in 1991.

, 67 years old, Filipino, is 
co-Vice Chairman of GT Capital since May 2016. Prior to 
assuming this post, he was Chairman of GT Capital since 

joined the Metrobank Group in 1997 as President of First 
Metro Investment Corporation, the investment arm of 
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (Metrobank), a post 
he held for 14 years until he became its Chairman in 2011. 
Mr. Sebastian concurrently serves as Vice Chairman of 

Investments Corporation (MPIC), and Federal Land, Inc. He 
worked in Hong Kong for 20 years from 1977, initially as an 
investment banker for Ayala International Finance Limited 
and Filinvest Finance (HK) Ltd. From 1984, until he joined 
the Metrobank Group, he owned and managed his own 

the Ateneo de Manila University and graduated Magna 
Cum Laude in 1975.

Board of Directors

, 54 years old, Filipino, has been a Vice 
Chairman of the Corporation since February 14, 2012 and 
has served as a Director of the Corporation since 2007. He 
is also a Director of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company 
(Metrobank) and Chairman of Toyota Motor Philippines 
Corporation (TMP). He graduated from the University of
Southern California in 1989 with a degree in Business 

Some of his other current roles and positions include: Vice

listed company; Chairman, Federal Land, Inc.; Member of 
the Board of Trustees, Metrobank Foundation, Inc.;
Chairman, Toyota Motor Philippines Foundation (TMPF); 
and President, GT Foundation, Inc. (GTFI).

, 81 years old, Filipino, was appointed as 
Board Adviser of GT Capital in June 2014. Prior to this, 
she served as the Corporation’s Treasurer since its 
incorporation in 2007. Mrs. Ty has more than 50 years of 
experience in banking and general business. She currently 
holds the following positions: Board Adviser, Metropolitan 
Bank & Trust Company (Metrobank); Adviser, Metrobank 
Foundation, Inc. and Federal Land, Inc.; Adviser, Manila 
Medical Services, Inc.; Adviser, Horizon Land Development 
Corporation; Chairperson, Horizon Royale Holdings, Inc.; 
Director, Grand Titan Capital Holdings, Inc.; Chairperson, 
Ausan Resources Corporation; Chairperson, Grand Estate 

Resources Corporation; and Chairperson of Philippine 
Securities Corporation, Tytana Corporation, and Federal 
Homes, Inc. Previously, Mrs. Ty held the position of Director 
for First Metro Investment Corporation. She earned her 
collegiate degree from the University of Santo Tomas.

, 65 years old, Filipino, 
assumed the role of President and Director of GT Capital 
in 2011. Prior to his election, Mr. Bautista joined First 
Metro Investment Corporation (FMIC) in April of 2008 
as Executive Director and was appointed as Chairman 

the position of Head of FMIC’s Investment Banking 
Group in 2009. Mr. Bautista has been in the Banking and 
Financial Services sector for 44 years. Some highlights 
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of his previous scope of responsibilities over this period 

Banking Institute; Vice President and Head of the Local 
Corporate and Public Sector Groups at Citibank-Manila; 
Vice President-Real Estate Finance Group, Citibank N.A.-
Singapore Branch; Vice President-Structured Finance at 

of ABN AMRO Bank-Philippines; and President and CEO of 
Philippine Bank of Communications (PBCOM). Mr. Bautista 
has a Master’s degree in Business Management from the 
Asian Institute of Management, where he graduated in 
the Dean’s Citation List. He also has a Bachelor’s degree, 
Major in Economics, from the Ateneo de Manila University. 
Mr. Bautista currently serves as Chairman of Toyota 
Financial Services Philippines Corporation (TFSPH), as well 
as Director of Federal Land, Inc., Toyota Motor Philippines 
Corporation (TMP), AXA Philippines, GT Capital Auto and 
Mobility Holdings, Inc. (GTCAM), Toyota Subic, Inc., GT 
Mobility Ventures, Inc., and Toyota Manila Bay Corporation 
(TMBC). He is also an Adviser to the Board of Trustees of 
GT Foundation, Inc. and an Independent Director of Vivant 
Corporation, a listed company.

, 80 years old, Filipino, is the 
Chairman of Omnipay, Inc., Lead Independent Director 
of GT Capital and iPeople Inc., and Independent Director 
of EEI Corporation. His past positions include: President/
CEO, Social Security System (SSS); Chairman/CEO, Union 
Bank of the Philippines; President/CEO, Roxas Holdings, 
Inc.; Vice Chairman/Director, San Miguel Corporation 
(SMC); Chairman, Philippine Savings Bank (PSBank); 
Independent Director, Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company 
(Metrobank); Advisory Board Member, Philippines Coca-
Cola System Council, and Director: Philippine Long 
Distance Telephone Company (PLDT), Manila Electric 
Company (Meralco), Philex Mining Corporation, Far East 
Bank and Trust Company, Roxas and Company, Inc., Bases 

Development Corporation, Philippine Veterans Bank, and 
Makati Stock Exchange. He is a graduate of the Philippine 
Military Academy, with a Bachelor’s degree in General 
Engineering, and the Asian Institute of Management, with 
a Master’s degree in Business Management.

, 67 years old, Filipino, was elected 
as an Independent Director of GT Capital Holdings, Inc. on 
May 17, 2021. She is a Senior Consultant for Challengers and 
Growth Markets in ING Bank, N.V., Manila. She currently holds 
the following positions: Independent Director of ACEN 
Corporation, The Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc., Sun Life 
Investment Management and Trust Corporation, and Far 
Eastern University, Inc.; Independent Director and Trustee 
of ING Foundation Philippines, Inc.; Member of the Board 
of Directors of the Financial Executives Institute of the 
Philippines (FINEX) and Liaison Director to the Finex Capital 

of the Capital Markets Development Council; ; and a Fellow 
of the Institute of Corporate Directors. She was formerly 
the Country Manager and Head of Clients of ING Bank N.V., 
Manila from September 2008 until November 15, 2017. Ms. 
Garcia previously worked with SGV in audit and in Bank of 

Accountant and she graduated Magna Cum Laude for 
Bachelor of Science in Business Administration, major in 
Accounting from the University of the East.

, 67 years old, Filipino, is an 
Independent Director of GT Capital Holdings, Inc. He is 
also the Vice Chairman of Equicom Manila Holdings, Inc., 
a holding company for businesses engaged in healthcare, 

addition to his appointment to GT Capital’s Board, he 
also holds the following positions: Independent Director 
of UBS Philippines, Inc., Independent Director of AIG 
Insurance Philippines Inc., Independent Director of Lorenzo 
Shipping Corporation, and Independent Director of DDMP 
REIT, Inc. He is likewise a Director and Member of the 

and President of Cliveden Management Corporation. 

major in Behavioral Sciences and Bachelor of Science in 
Commerce, major in Accounting at De La Salle University 
in the Philippines. He also earned his Master in Business 
Administration from the same university.
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, 63 years old, Filipino, assumed the 

Capital in 2018. He is currently Special Legal Counsel of the
Metrobank Group and the Corporate Secretary of 
Metrobank. In addition, he is also Of Counsel of Angara 

Laws Degree from the Georgetown University Law Center, 
Washington D.C., U.S.A. He obtained his Bachelor of Laws 
degree from the Ateneo de Manila University, where he 
graduated with honors, and has a Bachelor’s degree in 
Economics from the University of the Philippines. He is also 
a Director of Lepanto Consolidated Mining Co. and LMG
Chemicals Corporation, both publicly listed companies.

, 68 years old, Filipino, has been a Director 
of GT Capital since May 2014.  He garnered his Doctor of 
Philosophy degree in International Relations from New York 
University in 1982.  He currently serves as Vice Chairman 
and Treasurer of Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation 
(TMPC).  He is also the Vice Chairman of Toyota Aisin 
Philippines, Inc.; Director and Treasurer of Toyota Financial 
Services Philippines Corporation (TFSPH); President of 
Toyota Motor Philippines Foundation, Inc. and Toyota Motor 
Philippines School of Technology, Inc.; Chairman of Toyota 
San Fernando, Inc., Toyota Manila Bay Corporation (TMBC), 
and TMP Logistics, Inc.  Dr. Go has no directorship in other 
listed companies aside from GT Capital.

, 68 years old, Filipino, is a 
Director of GT Capital Holdings, Inc. He held several 
positions in other companies, among which are: Vice 
Chairman, Cathay International Resources Corporation; 
Chairman, Omni-Orient Management Corporation; 
Chairman, Metpark Commercial Estate Association, Inc.; 
Chairman, Central Realty & Development Corporation; 

Federal Land Communities, Inc.; Chairman, Topsphere 
Realty Development Co. Inc.; Chairman, Fed South Dragon 
Corporation; Chairman, Federal Retail Holdings Inc.; 

Management Corporation; President, Bonifacio Landmark 

Bonifacio Landmark Realty and Development Inc.; 
President, Federal Land-Orix Corporation; President, 
ST 6747 Resources Corporation; Director, Horizon Land 
Resources Development Corporation and Director, 

Corporation. He is also the former President of Federal 
Land, Inc. Prior to joining Federal Land, he was the 
President and Director of Philippine Savings Bank (PSBank) 

of Friends, Inc. from 2016 to 2019; Director of Toyota 
Financial Services Philippines Inc. from 2007 to 2017 and 
Director of Sumisho Motor Finance Corporation from 
2009 to 2016. Mr. Garcia earned his Bachelor’s degree in 
Commerce, major in Management, from the Ateneo de 
Zamboanga University.

, 58 years old, Filipino, 
is a Board Adviser of GT Capital. Prior to this, he was an 
Independent Director of GT Capital from 2012 until 2020. 

The Philippine Star (since 1998); President and Chief 

and Publisher of Pilipino Star Ngayon (since 1994) and PM 
Pang-Masa (since 2003); President of Pilipino Star Printing 
Company (since 1994); President of Nation Broadcasting 
Corporation of the Philippines (since 2016); and President 
of Hastings Holdings Inc. Mr. Belmonte is also the President 
of Cebu-based The Freeman and Banat News (since 2004); 
Vice Chairman of People Asia magazine; and a member 
of the Board of Advisers of Manila Tytana College (since 
2008). Aside from GT Capital, Mr. Belmonte also sits on 
the board of Cignal TV, Nation Broadcasting Corporation 

Board of Directors
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of the Philippines, and Hastings Holdings Inc. He earned 
his undergraduate degree from the University of the 
Philippines in Diliman. Mr. Belmonte has no directorships in 
other listed companies aside from GT Capital.

, 75 years old, Filipino, was elected 
as Independent Director of GT Capital on May 14, 2013. 
He currently holds various positions in other Philippine 
corporations, such as: Independent Director of Philex 
Mining Corporation, a listed company, (2011-present); 
Independent Director of RL Commercial REIT, Inc. 
(2021-present); Member of the Board of Trustees and 
Treasurer of Dualtech Training Center (2012-present); 
He also served as the Executive Vice President/

Petrochemical Corporation; President of Union Carbide 
Philippines; President/Director of Union Carbide-Indonesia; 
Managing Director of Union Carbide Singapore; and 

holds a Bachelor of Science (BS) in Industrial Pharmacy 
degree from the University of the Philippines and a 
Master’s degree in Business Administration (MBA) from 
the De La Salle University Graduate School of Business. He 

Leading with Finance from the Harvard Business School 
Online. He is also a Teaching Fellow of the Institute of 
Corporate Directors.

, 62 years old, Filipino, was 
appointed as Board Adviser of GT Capital in June 2016. 

of Friends, Inc. Mr. Choa earned his Bachelor’s Degree in 
Commerce, Major in Marketing, from De La Salle University 
and his Master’s degree in Business Economics from the 
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Senior Management

ALESANDRA T. TY
Assistant Treasurer

ANJANETTE TY DY BUNCIO
Treasurer

CARMELO MARIA LUZA BAUTISTA
President
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FRANCISCO H. SUAREZ, JR.VICENTE SANIEL SOCCO
Chairman, GT Capital Auto 
and Mobility Holdings, Inc.

JOSE B. CRISOL, JR.
SVP/Head of Investor Relations,

Strategic Planning, and Corporate
Communication

ANTONIO VIRAY
Corporate Secretary
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SUSAN E. CORNELIO
VP/Head of Human

Resources and Administration

JOCELYN Y. KHO
Assistant Corporate 

Secretary

JOYCE B. DE LEONSTEPHEN JOHN SAN JUAN COMIA 

Management

Senior Management
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ATTY. RENEE LYNN MICIANO-ATIENZA
VP/Head of Legal and

Compliance

DON DAVID C. ASUNCION
VP, GT Capital Auto and 
Mobility Holdings, Inc.

LEO PAUL C. MAAGMA
VP/Chief Audit Executive

REYNA ROSE PANER-MANON-OG
FVP/Controller and Head of Accounting 

and Financial Control
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, 41 years old, Filipino, was appointed 
Assistant Treasurer of GT Capital on February 14, 2012. 
She was appointed as a Director of GT Capital in 2020. 
She graduated from the Ateneo de Manila University with 
a Bachelor of Science degree in Legal Management. 
She then earned her Master’s in Business Administration 
from the China Europe International Business School in 
Shanghai, China. She is currently Director and Corporate 
Treasurer of AXA Philippines; Corporate Secretary and 
Corporate Treasurer of First Metro Investment Corporation; 
Corporate Secretary of GT Foundation, Inc.; Senior Vice 
President and Treasurer of Federal Homes, Inc.; and 
Executive Vice President of Grand Titan Capital Holdings, 
Inc.

, 65 years old, Filipino, 
assumed the role of President and Director of GT Capital 
in 2011. Prior to his election, Mr. Bautista joined First 
Metro Investment Corporation (FMIC) in April of 2008 
as Executive Director and was appointed as Chairman 

the position of Head of FMIC’s Investment Banking 
Group in 2009. Mr. Bautista has been in the Banking and 
Financial Services sector for 44 years. Some highlights 
of his previous scope of responsibilities over this period 

Banking Institute; Vice President and Head of the Local 
Corporate and Public Sector Groups at Citibank-Manila; 
Vice President-Real Estate Finance Group, Citibank N.A.-
Singapore Branch; Vice President-Structured Finance at 

of ABN AMRO Bank-Philippines; and President and CEO of 
Philippine Bank of Communications (PBCOM). Mr. Bautista 
has a Master’s degree in Business Management from the 
Asian Institute of Management, where he graduated in 
the Dean’s Citation List. He also has a Bachelor’s degree, 
Major in Economics, from the Ateneo de Manila University. 
Mr. Bautista currently serves as Chairman of Toyota 
Financial Services Philippines Corporation (TFSPH), as well 
as Director of Federal Land, Inc., Toyota Motor Philippines 
Corporation (TMP), AXA Philippines, GT Capital Auto and 
Mobility Holdings, Inc. (GTCAM), Toyota Subic, Inc., GT 
Mobility Ventures, Inc., and Toyota Manila Bay Corporation 
(TMBC). He is also an Adviser to the Board of Trustees of 
GT Foundation, Inc. and an Independent Director of Vivant 
Corporation, a listed company.

Senior Management

, 53 years old, Filipino, was 
appointed as GT Capital’s Treasurer in May 2015. Prior to 
this, she served as the Corporation’s Assistant Treasurer 
since 2007. She holds several other positions in other 
companies among which are: Director, Treasurer and 
Executive Vice President of Federal Land, Inc.; Director 
and Chairman of the Board of Manila Medical Services 
lnc.; Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of Bonifacio 
Landmark Realty Development Corp.; Senior Vice President 
of Metrobank Foundation Inc.; Senior Vice President of 
GT Foundation Inc.; and Executive Vice President and 
Corporate Secretary of Pro Oil Corporation. She graduated 
from the International Christian University in Tokyo, Japan 
with a Bachelor of Social Science Degree in Economics.

, 82 years old, Filipino, has served 
as Corporate Secretary of GT Capital since 2009. His legal 

then embarked on a banking career with the Philippine 
Savings Bank (PSBank) holding the positions of Senior 
Vice-President for Loans, Legal, Administrative, Branch 
Operations and Corporate Secretary. When PSBank was 
acquired by Metropolitan Bank &amp; Trust Company 
(Metrobank), he was recruited as General Counsel (then 
Special Counsel) of Metrobank, later becoming
Senior Vice President, Corporate Secretary, and Director. 
He is currently Corporate Secretary of Grand Titan Capital 
Holdings, Inc., Chief Legal Adviser of the Bankers
Institute of the Philippines (BAIPhil) and Of Counsel 
of Feria Tantoco Daos Law Firm. His foundations as a 
respected corporate lawyer and secretary were provided 
by Colegio de San Juan de Letran (Letran College), where 

of Laws as Valedictorian and Magna Cum Laude; and 

U.S.A., where he obtained his Master of Laws (emphasis on
Corporation Law) degree through a Ford Foundation 
Fellowship Grant. He placed 19 th in the 1961 BAR exams.
He was principal counsel in the joint ventures of the 
Metrobank Group with Toyota Motors Corporation, AXA 
Insurance and ANZ Bank (for Metrobankcard). As Of 

ventures of the Federal Land Group.
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, 62 years old, is the Chairman 
of GT Capital Auto and Mobility Holdings, Inc. (GTCAM). 
GTCAM is a wholly-owned subsidiary of GT Capital and is 
the vehicle for the management of the Group’s mobility 

Socco began his career with Toyota in the Philippines as 
a member of its marketing team. He was then appointed 

(TMP) opened in 1988, where he rose through the ranks 
to become Senior Vice President (SVP) for Marketing 

appointed SVP of Lexus Asia in 2007, concurrent with his 
roles as the Executive-in-Charge for country operations 

the role of Executive Vice President and acting Chief 

General Manager for TMAP in Japan. He then returned to 
Singapore in 2017 as EVP for Lexus Asia until his retirement 
in July 2019. Mr. Socco garnered his Bachelor of Science in 
Economics at the University of the Philippines in Diliman 
and completed the Executive Development Program of 

 
, 62 years old, Filipino, serves as 

GT Capital’s Executive Vice President and Chief Financial 

February 16, 2012. He is also a Director and the Treasurer 
of GT Capital Auto and Mobility Holdings, Inc., Toyota Subic 
Bay, GT Mobility Ventures and JBA Philippines, Director 
of Toyota Sta Rosa, Inc. and Premium Warranty Services 
Philippines, Inc., Adviser to the Board of Toyota Manila Bay 
Corp., and Corporate Secretary of Toyota Financial Services 
Philippines Corporation. Over his tenure, he successfully 
supervised the launch of the Corporation’s initial public 

series of perpetual preferred shares. Mr. Suarez brings to 
GT Capital over 40 years of solid and extensive experience 

to joining GT Capital, he was the CFO of three subsidiaries 
of the ATR KimEng Group. For a time, he also served 

Inc. Before this, he was appointed as the CFO of PSI 
Technologies, Inc., and, prior to that, of SPI Technologies, 
Inc. Previously, he was a Director for Corporate Finance 
at Asian Alliance Investment Corporation. He has also 
assumed various positions in Metrobank, International 
Corporate Bank (InterBank), Far East Bank and Trust 
Company, and the National Economic Development 
Authority. Mr. Suarez graduated from De La Salle 
University with a Bachelor of Science degree in Applied 
Economics and is a candidate for the Master in Business 
Administration degree at the Ateneo de Manila University.

, 55 years old, Filipino, serves as 
Senior Vice President and Head of the Investor Relations, 
Strategic Planning, and Corporate Communication 

position on July 26, 2012. He also serves as a Director of 

Head. Before joining the Corporation, he was the Assistant 
Vice President for Investor Relations of SM Investments 
Corporation (SM). Prior to working with SM, he was a 

heading its Trade and Industry Information Center. He 
also served for a time, on a concurrent basis, as Head 

employment includes occupying various positions at The 
Philippine American Life Insurance Company and Merrill 
Lynch Philippines, Inc., among others. He holds a Master 
in Business Economics degree from the University of 

Economics from the University of the Philippines - Diliman. 
He completed his primary and secondary education at the 
Ateneo de Manila University.

, 67 years old, Filipino, has served as  
GT Capital’s Assistant Corporate Secretary since June 2011. 
Previously, she was the company’s Controller until 2010. 
Before this, Ms. Kho worked for Metropolitan Bank &amp; 
Trust Company (Metrobank) as Vice President under the

to 2009. She concurrently holds the following positions: 
Assistant Corporate Secretary, Grand Titan Capital 
Holdings, Inc.; Controller; Director and Treasurer, Global 
Business Holdings, Inc., Circa 2000 Homes, Inc., Nove Ferum 
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Holdings, Inc. and Horizon Royale Holdings, Inc.; Director, 
Senior Vice President and Corporate Secretary, Federal 
Homes, Inc.; Director, Treasurer and Corporate Secretary of

Corporation; Corporate Secretary, Federal Land, Inc.; and 

MBTC Management Consultancy, Inc., Granview Realty and 
Development Corporation, Cellini Holdings, Inc., and Service 
Leasing Corporation; Director and President, Harmony 

Splendor Realty Corporation. She earned her Bachelor of 
Science degree in Commerce, major in Accounting, from 
the University of Santo Tomas in 1975, and is a candidate 
for the Master of Science degree in Taxation from Manuel 
L. Quezon University.

, 44 years old, Filipino, 

Project Director of the Group for Cavite Projects. He 
brings to GT Capital more than 16 years of experience 

Inc. from 2005 until 2021 where he served as the Estate 
Development Head. Mr. Comia handled land acquisition 
and overall master-planning, development, sales, 

developments. The estates that he handled include 
Nuvali in Sta. Rosa and Calamba, Laguna, Arca South in 
Taguig, The Junction Place in Novaliches, and Vermosa in 
Imus and Dasmariñas, Cavite. Mr. Comia holds a Master in 
Business Administration degree from the Asian Institute 
of Management and a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Management Engineering from the Ateneo de Manila 
University.

, 47 years old, Filipino, serves as 

Holdings, Inc. She was appointed to the position on 19 
October 2020. Ms. De Leon brings close to 16 years of solid 
risk management experience to the company, across 

to GT Capital, she was the First Vice President and Head 

of Market and Liquidity Risk for BDO Unibank, Inc. and a 

for close to a decade, she served as Senior Vice President 
and Head of Risk Management for Maybank ATR Kim 
Eng, building the Risk Management function from the 
ground up and engaging in the investment bank and stock 
brokerage’s management risk, credit and underwriting, 

she was the Country Head for Market Risk of Standard 

in Vietnam. For a time, she also served as Market Risk 

bank subsidiary of the Metrobank Group. Ms. De Leon 
garnered her Master’s degree in International Business 
(MIB) at the University of Melbourne in Australia, her 
Master in Business Administration (MBA) degree, major 

Psychology from De La Salle University.

, 50 years old, Filipino, joined GT 
Capital on July 4, 2012 as its Head of Human Resources 
and Administration. Prior to this, she served as Vice 

Sterling Bank of Asia and as Assistant Vice President and 

Planters Bank. She has had other HR stints from the 

Banking, Solidbank, and Citytrust. She holds a Bachelor of 
Science in Commerce major in Accounting from Sta. Isabel 

International HR Practices from Cornell University’s School 
of Industrial and Labor Relations. She obtained a Master’s 
degree in Business Economics from the University of Asia 

, 40 years old, Filipino, 
is the Controller and First Vice President of GT Capital. She 
was appointed Controller in October 2011 and serves as 

Before joining the conglomerate, she was the Assistant 
Vice President and Head of the Financial Accounting 

this, she was a Director at Sycip Gorres Velayo & Company 
(SGV & Co.), where she gained seven years of experience 

Senior Management
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Accountant and a Cum Laude graduate of Bicol University 
with a Bachelor of Science degree in Accountancy. She 
completed the Strategic Business Economics Program of 

, 39 years 
old, Filipino, is Vice President and Head of the Legal & 

to her position on May 11, 2016 and has been with GT 
Capital since August 2012. She concurrently holds the 
following positions: Director, GT Capital Auto and Mobility 
Holdings, Inc.; Director, Toyota Subic, Inc. Prior to joining 
the Corporation, she was the Head of the Investigation 

Integrity Corporation (CMIC). Before joining CMIC, she was 

school, a trader for United Coconut Planters Bank. She 
earned her Bachelor of Science degree in Management 

Juris Doctor degree in the same university. In 2019, she 
completed the Strategic Business Economics Program of 

, 51 years old, Filipino, was 
appointed the Chief Audit Executive of GT Capital Holdings, 
Inc. in April 2018. With over 28 years of extensive work 

accounting, accounts receivables, treasury, and payroll—
Mr. Maagma began his career in an external auditing 

company, and nearly 15 years in a business engaged in 
the distribution of health care products. He spent eight of 
his more than two decades in audit work at the regional 

Zuellig Pharma Corporation (Zuellig) and Unilever 

years, Mr. Maagma served in various capacities at Zuellig—
Internal Audit Manager from 2012 to 2018, Accounts 
Receivable Manager from 2010 to 2012, Corporate Internal 
Audit Manager from 2007 to 2010, and Internal Audit 

responsible for the Philippine subsidiary’s internal audit 
function, while assisting in regional risk–based internal 

audits for the Zuellig Pharma Group across 12 countries 

Maagma held several positions at Unilever from 1998 to 
2003: Regional Information Systems Audit Supervisor, 
Category Accounting Manager, and Treasury Manager. 

in Empire East Land Holdings, Inc. and Ernst and Young 
International. Mr. Maagma earned his Master’s degree in 
Business Administration (MBA) from the Asian Institute of 

(ISMS) Internal Auditor. He graduated from the University 
of Santo Tomas with a Bachelor of Science degree in 
Commerce, major in Accountancy.

, 42 years old, Filipino, is the 
Vice President of GT Capital Auto and Mobility Holdings, 
Inc. (GTCAM), the conglomerate’s wholly-owned subsidiary 
for the Group’s automotive holdings. He brings to GT 

sector. Mr. Asuncion began his career with Toyota Motor 
Philippines in 2002 handling franchise development 
and area operations in 2006. In 2008, he joined Ford 
Group Philippines taking on diverse roles in Business 
Development, Customer Service, and Sales. Subsequently, 
in 2012, he joined Bermaz Auto Philippines (formerly 
Berjaya Auto Philippines) as the company’s General 
Sales Manager and later General Manager for Sales and 
Marketing. In 2019, he assumed the role of Assistant Vice 
President for Mitsubishi Motors Philippines Corporation 
where he was most recently employed prior to joining 
GTCAM. Mr. Asuncion garnered his Bachelor of Science 
degree in Management at the Ateneo de Manila University.
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, 59 years old, Filipino, is the President 
of Metropolitan Bank and Trust Company (Metrobank), 
the country’s premier universal bank, recognized by 

Bank in the Philippines today. He is a seasoned banker 
with approximately 37 years of experience in treasury, 
corporate banking, and retail banking. Mr. Dee joined 
the Metrobank Group in 2000 to lead the Bank’s largest 
business center. He then moved to Corporate Banking 
to reinforce Metrobank’s stronghold among the large 
conglomerates and middle market accounts. In 2006, 
he was appointed National Branch Banking Sector Head, 
successfully improving the Bank’s footprint in the retail 
business. Within Mr. Dee’s term as President of Metrobank, 
he had concurrently held various positions including 
Chairman and Director of Metrobank Card Corporation 

Singapore PTE Ltd. from 2010 until 2019, Chairman of LGU 
Guarantee Corporation from 2017 until 2019, and Chairman 
of SMBC Metro Investment Corporation from 2014 to 2017.

GT Capital Group Management

, 53 years old, Japanese, is the 
President of Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation 
and a Director of Toyota Financial Services Philippines 
Corporation. He has over 28 years of experience in both 

career in Toyota Motor Corporation in 1992. In 2012, he 

Lexus Planning Division. In 2015, Mr. Okamoto was seconded 

of Marketing and Sales. Prior to his new post with TMP, he 
served as Executive Vice President of TMAP since 2019. Mr. 
Okamoto earned his Bachelor’s degree in Economics at 
Keio University in Tokyo, Japan.

, 57 years old, Filipino, is 

Federal Land Inc. He is also the President of Horizon Land, 

Mirasol has over 30 years of management experience, 
successfully handling various roles in strategic planning, 

FABIAN S. DEE
President

Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company (Metrobank)

RAHUL HORA
President

AXA Philippines

MANUEL V. PANGILINAN
Chairman and President

ANICETO M. SOBREPEÑA
President

Metrobank Foundation, Inc.

ATSUHIRO OKAMOTO
President

Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation

WILLIAM THOMAS F. MIRASOL
President

Federal Land, Inc.
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project development, business development, commercial 
operations, sales, and marketing. He was previously the 

Ayala Land, Inc., from 2016 until 2018. Prior to this, Mr. 
Mirasol was the Chief Executive in Sales and Marketing of 
Ayala Land, Inc.’s residential business group and President 
of Ayala Land International Sales from 2011 to 2016. At 
Ayala Land, he oversaw a workforce of over 18,000 people 
and had key roles in planning, development, operations, 
negotiations, facilities management, and client relations. 
Mr. Mirasol earned his Master of Business Management 
at the Asian Institute of Management and his Bachelor’s 
degree in Commerce from De La Salle University.
 

, 48 years old, Indian, is the President 

accomplished work experience spans 24 years, including 
four years in the FMCG industry and more than 20 years in 

then also served as a member of the Board of Directors 

and led the organization towards being a more customer-
centric company, with key focus on digital transformation. 
Prior to working at AXA Philippines, he has served as the 
Regional Head of Distribution in AXA Asia Life based in 
Hong Kong; and the Senior Vice President and Head of 
Sales Development of ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. 

insurance industry, serving as the Sales Manager of ICICI 
Prudential in Delhi, right from its inception, and later 
becoming a member of its Senior Management team as 
ICICI expanded. He earned his undergraduate degree from 

received his Master’s degree in Marketing.

, 76, sits at the helm of Metro 

Philippines—from which MPIC traces its roots—and 
currently serves as its Managing Director and Chief 

positions within the MVP Group: President and CEO 
of Philippine Long Distance Telephone Company and 

Chairman, Vice Chairman, or Board Director at: Manila 
Electric Company, Maynilad Water Services Corporation, 
Mediaquest Incorporated, Associated Broadcasting 
Corporation, Philex Mining Corporation, Philex Petroleum 

Verdes Hospital Managers Corporation, Davao Doctors 
Incorporated, Riverside Medical Center Incorporated in 
Bacolod, East Manila Hospital Managers  Corporation, Asian 
Hospital Incorporated, Central Luzon Doctors’ Hospital 

Zamboanga Hospital Corporation, and The Megaclinic 
Incorporated. In 2012, he was appointed as Vice Chairman 
of Roxas Holdings Incorporated which owns and operates 
the largest sugar milling operations in the Philippines. 
He is the incumbent Chairman of the Board of Trustees of 
San Beda College. He is also the Chairman of the Philippine 
Disaster Resiliency Foundation, Incorporated (PDRF) and 
the Philippine Business for Social Progress (PBSP). He Co-
Chairs the US-Philippines Business Society as well. Being 

Samahang Basketbol ng Pilipinas and Chairman of the 
Amateur Boxing Association of the Philippines. 

from Ateneo de Manila University where he graduated cum 
laude. He pursued his Master of Business Administration 

Procter & Gamble Fellow.

, 69 years old, Filipino, is the 
President of Metrobank Foundation, Inc. (MBFI) and 
Executive Vice President of Metropolitan Bank & Trust 

the President in Malacañang, Mr. Sobrepeña joined the 
private sector, initially as Executive Director from 1995 to 
2006 of MBFI and later on  as its President. Mr. Sobrepeña 

and human development. Under his stewardship, MBFI has 
emerged as one of the country’s most dynamic corporate 
philanthropic foundations and among the most awarded 
organizations in business communication, public relations, 
and humanitarian services. Concurrently, Mr. Sobrepeña 
also serves as Vice Chairman of Manila Doctors Hospital, 

Tytana Colleges (formerly Manila Doctors College). He 
is also the Executive Director of GT Foundation, Inc., the 
family foundation of the late Group Chairman Dr. George 
Ty Siao Kian.
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Statement of Management’s
Responsibility for Financial Statements

The management of GT Capital Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent and 

 

(Original signed)

Chairman of the Board

 (Original signed)  (Original signed)
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GT Capital Holdings, Inc.

Opinion 
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Impairment Testing of Goodwill and Customer Relationship

Real Estate Revenue Recognition
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statements.

information.
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Other Information

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

statements.

• 

control.

• 

• 
made by management.
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• 

• 

• 

 

 

• 

• 

• 
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position
(In Millions)

 December 31
2021

ASSETS

Current Assets
P17,404

8,712
15,852

6,157
78,817

155
14,070
141,167

Noncurrent Assets
16,311
3,766
7,114

15,646
186,187
14,918
9,938
1,174
1,573

256,627
P397,794

Current Liabilities
34,203

3,384
9,127

9,423
304

910
590
193
161

1,316
59,611
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 December 31
2021

Noncurrent Liabilities
P112,755

10,077
1,658
1,629
3,232
3,753

133,104
  Total Liabilities 192,715

Equity

3,370
98,827
88,982

400
143

2,322
194,044

11,035
205,079

P397,794
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

2021
CONTINUING OPERATIONS

P150,964 
11,065

5,617
1,899
1,046

589
Commission income 288

3,175
174,643

COSTS AND EXPENSES
102,959

32,111
13,455
6,270
3,123
655

158,573
16,070

 1,821
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS 14,249
NET INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
NET INCOME P14,249

Equity holders of the Parent Company
P10,983  

10,983
Non-controlling interests

3,266

3,266
P14,249

 

Company P
 

to Equity Holders of the Parent Company P
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Consolidated Statements 
of Comprehensive Income

(In Millions)

2021
NET INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS P14,249
NET INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS  –  –
NET INCOME 14,249

CONTINUING OPERATIONS

26
19 10

149
236
720

 –
1,129

3,661
 

538
750

141
1,270 1,000

 
NET OF TAX  –  –

1,270 1,000
P15,519

Equity holders of the Parent Company
 P11,979

11,979
Non-controlling interests

3,540

3,540
P15,519
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity

(In Millions)
 

 

 Additional 
 Paid-in Capital 
 

 Retained 
 Earnings - 
 Unappropriated 
 

 Retained 
 Earnings - 
 Appropriated 
 

P3,370 P98,827 P79,234 P400
 –  –  –
 –  –  –  –
 –  – 10,983  –

P3,370 P98,827 P88,982 P400

 –  –  –
 –  –  –  –
 –  –  –

 –  –  –
 –

 –  –
 –  –  –  –
 –  –  –
 –  –  –
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 Other 
 Comprehensive 

 
 

 Other 
 Equity 
 Adjustments 
  Total

 
 Non-controlling 
 Interests 
  Total Equity

P P2,322 P183,300 P8,885 P192,185
 –
 – 365  365

996 11,979 3,540 15,519
143 2,322 194,044 11,035 205,079

(
 –  –
 –  –

 –
 (

(  
 –  –
 –  – (1)  – (1)

 –  –  –  –  –
 –  –  –

 –  –
 –

(
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(In Millions)

2021

P16,070

16,070

6,270
2,188

408
367

78

 –  –
11,938

 –  –

6,148
  Contract assets

47

4,464
  Contract liabilities

404
 –

420
11,767

Interest paid

1,650
8,214

10,227
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2021

P240
 –  –

 –  –
 –  –
 –  –

57,647

 –  –

365

290

17,114

 P17,404
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION
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Statement of Compliance

Basis of Consolidation

December 31
 Incorporation 2021

 100.00

100.00

2021
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00
100.00

 

2021
100.00
100.00

100.00
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

100.00 per share, 

2021
100.00
100.00

2021

i. 
ii. 
iii. 

the three elements of control.

combination.
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presented.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

-

retained.

o 
o 

o 
o 
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o 
o 
o 

o 

o 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

economic interest.
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assets, or both.

 and are not held for trading.  The 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

commitment.

item.
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applied.

other related costs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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assets are in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

Years

operations.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

years.

Segments.
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Intangible assets

may be impaired.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Retained earnings

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Real estate sales

Sale of goods

Commission income

Management fees

Other income

Interest income
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Rent income

Other income

related contract.

Commissions

Cost of real estate sales

are determined.

Contract Balances

Contract assets

Contract liabilities
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commenced.

Costs to obtain a contract

a. 
b. 
c. 
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Transactions and balances

to the consolidated statements of income.
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Leases

ROU assets

Years
Land

Lease liabilities
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of less than 

declaration, if any.

Contingencies

Combinations

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



• 
o 

o 

o 

Strength in Adaptability



Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

o 

o 

o 
o 
o 
o 

no earlier than  

o 
o 

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



 (as amended by 

Until  

a. 
b. 
c. 

been adopted.  
d. 

Strength in Adaptability
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transaction.

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



 

payments.
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Contingencies

relating to these proceedings.

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1
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2021
Cash on hand P34

4,469
12,901

P17,404

2021
P11,132

5,618
1,230
1,051

434
335
150
447

20,397
779

P19,618

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
P15,852

3,766
P19,618

2021
P2,442

1,324
P3,766

2021
Real estate P5,618

P5,618
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1.01 billion and 

2021
P338

3
335

P335

2021
Balance at beginning of year P4

1 1
(1)

Balance at end of year P3

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Others

December 31, 2021
 Trade 
 Receivables

 Other 
 Receivables  Total

Balance at beginning of year P234 P187 P421
364 358

Balance at end of year P228 P551 P779

 Trade  Other 
 Total

Balance at beginning of year

Balance at end of year

2021
At cost
Real estate

P44,142
13,738
6,926

10
5

3,046
28

5,043
4,785

77,723

1,094
P78,817
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2021

Land and 
improvements

Condominium 
units held 

for sale
Construction 

 in progress Total
Balance at beginning of year P42,822 P11,710 P4,552 P59,084

1,116 4,326 2,307 7,749
 114 114
 188 16 508 712

204
372 270

Balance at end of year P44,142 P13,738 P6,926 P64,806

Land and 
 
 

for sale
 

 in progress Total
Balance at beginning of year

Balance at end of year

2021
P102,959

32,111
Cost of real estate sales 3,123

P138,193

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
Balance at beginning of year P141

9

Balance at end of year P143

2021
P4,308

2,551
2,201
1,706
1,127

1,003
686
136
56

Others 296
P14,070

periods.

contract.
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2021
P166,620

19,567

P186,187

2021
Cost
 Balance at beginning of year P112,319

 Balance at end of year 112,319
Accumulated equity in net income
 Balance at beginning of year 68,589

10,430

(1)
422

 Balance at end of year 79,241
Dividends received
 Balance at beginning of year

 Balance at end of year

 Balance at beginning of year

720
236
564

 Balance at end of year

 Balance at beginning of year 1,685
 – 1

 Balance at end of year 1,685
P166,620

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
Cost
 Balance at beginning of year P16,605

1,009
 Balance at end of year 17,614
Accumulated equity in net income
 Balance at beginning of year 2,388

413
 Balance at end of year 2,801
Dividends received
 Balance at beginning of year

 Balance at end of year

 Balance at beginning of year

149
 Balance at end of year

 Balance at beginning of year
 Recognition of deferred gain 103
 Balance at end of year

P19,567 

Nature of Country of 
Incorporation 2021

MBTC P

Real estate

Real estate

entities.  

Strength in Adaptability
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Declaration Date
Per 

Share Total Record Date Payment Date
2021

1.00

MPIC

SMFC
MPIC
Phil AXA

 
Share Total

MBTC 1.00

 

 

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



interest for an aggregate consideration of 

of 

 

2021
MBTC P91,048

19,110
P110,158

determined to be not impaired.
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2021

 
P101,448

79,084
22,364

12,701

Total assets 2,502,816
Total liabilities

327,732

318,505

118,325
4,162
2,974

P125,461 

2021

P87,364
75,695
11,669
4,839

16,508

72,412
511,922

236,865

193,304

31,509
277

2,573
3,835

P38,194

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021

P355 P1,265 P1,566  
8,053  – 7,692  –

978  – 3,103  –  –
 – 107,425  –  –  –

310 168 28  –
Interest income 25 9,375 437

300 4,543 309
347 159

405 10,157 2,675
1,544 9,077 2,148

733 367
6 310  –  –  –

1,043 367

916  – 16,375  –
12,541  – 2,457  –

Total assets 13,457 122,139 18,832
 –  –
 –  –  –

Total liabilities
4,401 14,332 7,933

3,081 5,733 4,760

220 910
P3,301 P6,643 P4,572

2021
  Associates

P222  P18,709 
44  2,782 

177,277  –  –
73  4,270 

1  5,112  –
165,713  –  –

23,165 5,344 
20,072  3,440 
2,289  1,305 

 114 
P2,007  P1,419 
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Limitation on dividend declaration of associates and joint venture

December 31, 2021
 Land and 
 Improvements

 
 Improvements

 Construction-in-  
 Progress  Total

Cost
P5,149 P10,320  P2,930 P18,399

4 97  101
13

4,883 10,430 2,917 18,230
Accumulated Depreciation

24 2,122  – 2,146
4 434  – 438

28 2,556  – 2,584
P4,855 P7,875 P2,917 P15,646

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



 Land and  
 Total

Cost
    

–
–
–

    

2021

P8,712

 15,919 
 392 

16,311
P25,023

to 
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and 

2021

Parent Company
Non-controlling

Interest Total
Balance at beginning of year P1,357 P198 P1,555

3,570 91 3,661
Balance at end of year P4,927 P289 P5,216

Interest Total
Balance at beginning of year

10
Balance at end of year

2021

 
 Equipment

 Furniture, 
 Fixtures and 
 Equipment

 Leasehold 
 Improvements

 Machinery, 
 Tools and 
 Equipment

 Land and 
 

 and Land 
 Improvements

 
and Equipment

 Right-of-use  
assets

 Construction- 
 in-Progress  Total

Cost

P705 P1,106  P355 P2,627 P3,224 P4,821  P6,128 P187 P904 P20,057

110 91 20 54 3 4,256 365 139 120 5,158

19 22 21

 667 1,216  297 2,703 3,225 9,098 6,493  194  945 24,838

Accumulated Depreciation 

463 717 263 951 123 1,144 4,735 49 8,445

  131 126 32 236 19 310 755 37 1,646

458 842 295 1,186 142 1,454 5,490 53 9,920

December 31 P209 P374 2 P1,517 P3,083 P7,644 P1,003 P141 P945 P14,918

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



  
 

 
  Leasehold 

 Machinery, 
 Tools and  Land and 

 
 and Land  

assets
 

 Total

Cost

(1)

2021

P1,646
438
104 101

2,188

operations

11

 P2,188

2021
Consolidated Statements of Income

P990
434

764 1,010

P2,188
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DISPOSAL OF ASSETS

Real estate sales
Rent income
Interest income
Other income

Cost of real estate sales

Gain on deconsolidation

 

(

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
P5,926

3,883
127

2
P9,938

Toyota TRDCI Total
P5,597 P88 P241 P5,926

Toyota

 

TMBC

-

Strength in Adaptability
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Toyota. 

-

2021
Cost
Balance at beginning of year P599

76
 –

Balance at end of year 675

Balance at beginning of year 445
103

Balance at end of year 548
P127

2021
P103 101

1 1  –
 –  –

P104

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

2021
Rental and other deposits P1,522

30
8

Others 13
P1,573

2021
Trade payables P15,429

5,460
4,956
3,660
1,056

955
773
682

Royalty payable 293
264
224

Retentions payable 95
Others 356

P34,203

2021
P12,243

Real estate 3,166
Others 20

P15,429
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2021
P3,156

663
424
161
156
130
101
59
53
27

Rent 19
Repairs and maintenance 18

13

Others 480
P5,460

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Interest rate range

2021 2021

P1,750
1,460

675
90

622
4,000

475
55

P9,127

Interest rate range
2021 Terms

P960

9,930

loans
61,681

loans
10,260

38,394

246

707

Total 122,178
9,423

P112,755
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2021

Balance at beginning of year P308
38

Balance at end of year P296

Balance at beginning of year P2

(1)
Balance at end of year P1

Balance at beginning of year P88
155

Balance at end of year P203

2021 2021
P482 P71

Corporate notes 60 47
4,770 621

agreements.

Entity Financial Ratio Required Ratio
Corporate notes

TMBC
TMBC
TMBC

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Amount
Maturity Dates Interest rate 2021 2021

10.0 billion Bonds
P6,100  P6,090  

4,000 3,987 
4,000 3,987

P10,100 P10,077

10.00 billion and

The 

The 

 

2021
Balance at beginning of year P40

Balance at end of year P23

CUSTOMERS’ DEPOSITS
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2021
P572

452
182

Unearned management fee income 37
9

Others 64
P1,316

 

2021
Retentions payable - P1,384

928
808
426

- net 134
36
32

Unearned rent income 5
P3,753

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
Claims and assessments P193

233
P426

 

2021
Contract Assets

P6,157
7,114

P13,271
Contract Liabilities

P3,384

to 

Cost to Obtain a Contract

2021
Balance at beginning of year P102

308

Balance at end of year P42
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Real estate sales

2021
P3,032

More than one year 752
P3,784

Shares Amount
2021 2021

174,300,000
174,300,000 P17

20,000,000
12,000,000 1,200

298,257,000
215,284,587 2,153

3,370
98,827

P102,197

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



a. 
b. 

c. 
d. 
e. 

f. 
g. 
h. 

a. 

b. 

c. 

d. 
e. 
f. 
g. 
h. 
i. th 

Common Shares

Retained Earnings

remaining 
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 (in millions) Record date

Perpetual Preferred Shares

Series B

 
 (in millions) Record date

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



 
 (in millions)  Record date

 Common 100.00

 Common 100.00
 Common 100.00

 Common 100.00
Toyota  Common

 Common
 Common

2021
 

P4,927

3 (10)

5
P143 (

income.

TCI

2021
Balance at beginning of year P8,885

3,266
274

344
21

Balance at end of year P11,035
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Financial Information of Subsidiaries

2021

Carrying value of material non-controlling interests 

2021
P8,998

Net income for the period allocated to material non-controlling interests

2021
P3,062

2021
 TMPC

Statement of Financial Position
P33,446

11,491
29,843
2,240
1,755

Statement of Comprehensive Income
132,854
126,632

6,222
6,773

Statement of Cash Flows
1,668

Capital Management 

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



INTEREST AND OTHER INCOME

Interest Income

2021

P1,652
196  –
23

 Others 28
P1,899

Other Income

2021
P715   
540
494
356
241
110
89
34

596
P3,175
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2021

P11,023
7 11 10
5

11,035
98,176  

109,211

7,191
10 11 
5

102,005
283

Internal and other transfers
643
137

P102,959

COST OF GOODS MANUFACTURED AND SOLD

2021
P1,342
28,953
30,295

2,151
28,144

328
3,214

Total cost of goods placed in process 31,686
16

Total Cost of goods in process 31,702
10

31,692
752

32,444
382

 Other transfers
P32,111

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
P2,973
2,888
1,571
1,515

Commissions 1,180
724
389
358

Repairs and maintenance 377
237
203
168
110
100
98
81
78
64
58
33
20
12
10 1
9

Others 199
P13,455
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December 31, 2021

Category
Outstanding 

Subsidiaries
P14,021 P5,290

15 15
1,659 753 

6 
2 18 Rental deposits

16 28 
4 Employee car plan

647 36

Lease payable 18 27 
753 753
310 4,474

2,412 
Rent income 55

1
12

Cost of rental 7 
167 
12 
60

Repairs and maintenance 3 
Associates    

6 5,834 
demandable

51 9 

1 7 
2 43 

21 45 

7 15 

1,750 1,750
4,690 1,460 

31 20 

Loans payable 1,051 10,000 

Other payables 19 
7,850

Rent income 132 Rent income from associates
Interest income 11 

380 

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



December 31, 2021

Category
Outstanding 

  
P8  P

21 4 

152 187 
demandable

550 3,861 
demandable

96 173
16 83 

1 27 

1 1

5

800 5,180

Other payables 7  4

8
Management fee income 23
Rent income 33  
Commission income 293 
Interest income 165

demandable

Others  
1,721 5,690 

demandable
7,852 8,712 Interest bearing

1 1
743 743

12 11 
impairment

355 355
7 49
3

28 27
58 14

224 173 

93 93 

Other payables 32 1 
Loans payable 1,433 1,433
Commission income 1
Interest income 58 Interest on time deposit placements
Rent income 1

52
37
59

3 
3
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Category Balances

 
Subsidiaries

 –

 –
 – 1

Lease payable

–
Real estate sales  –

 –
Cost of real estate sales  – Cost of lots sold
Cost of rental  –

 –
 –

Repairs and maintenance  –
Associates    

Other payables
Loans payable

Rent income Rent income 
Interest income
Commission income 1 Commission income

 

 1 

Other payables

Rent income Rent income
Commission income Commission income
Interest income
Management income Management income

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Category Balances

Others  
  

 1 

Other payables
Interest income Interest on time deposit placements
Rent income  1 

Category Balances

 
Subsidiaries

Real estate sales  –
Cost of real estate sales  – Cost of lots sold
Repairs and maintenance 1  –

Associates    
Commission income  –

Interest income 1
Rent income  – Rent income

 

Commission income  –

Management fee income  –

Rent income  –

Others  

Interest income  –

Management fee income  –

 –
 –
 –
 –
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Management fee

Lease agreements

2021
P903

122
P1,025

December 31, 2021

Category
  Outstanding 

Parent Company
P P5,779,080
1,165,240

 
Associate

1,079,343

 Time deposit

9,328,039 22,885,459
30,970,333 51,301,769

40,335,755

 Interest income 32,393
deposit

500,177
80,917

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Category
  

 Balances
Parent Company

(

Associate

 Time deposit

 Interest income
deposit

Category
  

 Balances
Parent Company

 
Associate
 Interest income

deposit

PENSION PLAN

2021
Actuarial Assumptions

 Date of Actuarial  Expected Return 
 on Plan Assets

 Salary Rate 
 Increase

 Discount 
 Rate

Real estate December 31, 2021
 -do-
 -do-

   Salary Rate 
 Increase

 
 Rate

Real estate

Strength in Adaptability
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2021
P (

Retirement liability 1,629
P1,621

Remeasurements in other comprehensive income
Return on 

plan assets 
 

amount 
included in 

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
experience 

adjustments

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
demographic 
assumptions

Actuarial 
changes 

arising from 
changes in 

assumptions Subtotal2021
Current 

service cost
Net

 interest

Past 
service 

cost Subtotal
 

 paid
Contributions 

paid
December 31, 

2021
Present value of 

obligation P4,634 P337   P169   P– P506 P
 

P– P P5 P P P– P4,055

plan assets 2,709 – 98 – 98 – – – 90 2,434

liability P1,925 P337 P71 P– P408 P P148 P P5 P P P P1,621

 
plan assets 

 

 
net interest)

changes 
arising from 

changes 
arising from 

demographic 

changes 
arising from 

changes in 
 

 interest

 

cost
 

paid
 

paid
 

obligation – ( – –

assets – – – – –

liability – ( ( (

2021
6  11 

P1,710
545
124
53

4
Liabilities

P2,434

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



2021
 Possible 
 Fluctuations

 Increase  Increase 

P (
304
315

Less than 1 year

INCOME TAXES

2021
P1,935

69
P1,821
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2021

P474
228
208

82
73
63
52
37
21
20

 Others 50
1,308

58
32
17 10

 Others 27
 134

P1,174

2021

P381
408
116
58
52
33

 Unearned income 25
20
15
5

 Others 6
1,119

1,962
1,261

381
507
138
68
22

3
 Retirement asset 2
 Others 7

4,351
P3,232

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



  
Unapplied

– – –

  
Unapplied

– – –
– – –
– – –

MCIT

Balance
10 – 10

–
–

–

2021
P5,498

138

2021

Others
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•
•

•

•

LEASE COMMITMENTS

from one (1) to 10 years.  

2021
Beginning balance P24

139
32

P45

2021
P69

47
8

P124

2021
P1,282

2,990
2,690

P6,962

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



demandable.

for transaction cost.

Loans payable and bonds payable
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2021

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
 Total 

Financial Assets
P8,712  P– P8,712  P– P8,712

15,919 15,919  –  – 15,919
392  – 392  – 392

P25,023 P15,919 P9,104  P– P25,023

Financial Assets

P335  P–  P– P338 P338
1,324  –  – 1,994 1,994

163,655 110,158  –  – 110,158
15,646  –  – 41,850 41,850

P180,960 P110,158  P– P44,182 P154,340

Financial Liabilities

P32  P– P32  P– P32

Financial Liabilities
1,658  –  – 2,194 2,194

 Loans payable 112,755  –  – 113,536 113,536
 Bonds payable 10,077 10,448  –  – 10,448

P124,490 P10,448  P– P115,730 P126,178

 Total 

 –  –

 –  –
 –  –

 –

 –  –
 –  –

 –  –
 –  –

 –

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



 Total 

 –  –

 –  –
 Loans payable  –  –
 Bonds payable  –  –

 –

Land

s

Shape 

Location 
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s

Time Element

 

• 
• 
• 

obligations. 

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



system.

December 31, 2021
Neither Past Due Nor Individually Impaired  Past Due but

 High Grade  Medium Grade  Low Grade  Total
 not Individually 
 Impaired

 Individually 
 Impaired  Total

P17,370    P–  P– P17,370  P–  P– P17,370

7,499 183 31 7,713 3,415 4 11,132
5,618  –  – 5,618  –  – 5,618

881  –  –  881 4 345 1,230
606 67 97 770 231 50 1,051
397  –  – 397  – 37 434
103  –  – 103 232  – 335
150  –  – 150  –  – 150

 Others 308  –  – 308 10 129 447
155  –  – 155  –  – 155

P33,087 P250 P128 P33,465 P3,892 P565 P37,922

 High Grade  Total
 

 Impaired
 

 Impaired  Total
 –  –  –  –

11
 –  –  –  –
 –  –

 –
 –  –  –
 –  –  –  –
 –  –  –

 Others  –  –
 –  –  –  –

11
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December 31, 2021

 Neither Past 
 Due nor  
 Individually
 Impaired

Past Due but not Individually Impaired

<30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days 91-120 days >120 days Total
Individually 

Impaired Total
P17,370  P– P– P– P– P– P– P– P17,370

7,713 1,008 1,000 543 251 613 3,415 4 11,132
5,618 – – – – – – – 5,618

income 881 1 1 1 1 – 4 345 1,230
770 13 79 112 10 17  231 50 1,051
397 – – – – – – 37 434
103 75 45 77 – 35 232 – 335
150 – – – – – – – 150

 Others 308 1 – – 9 10 129 447
155 – – – – – – – 155

P33,465 P1,098 P1,125 P733 262 674 3,892 565 37,922

Impaired Total
 

Impaired Total
– – – – – – –

– – – – – – –

income 1 1 1 1 –

– –
– – – – – –
– – – – – – –

 Others 10 – –
– – – – – – –
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December 31, 2021
Up to 1 year > 1 to 5 years > 5 years  Total

Financial assets
P17,371  P– P – P17,371

8,707 2,486  – 11,193
4,294 1,993  – 6,287
1,230  –  – 1,230
1,051  –  – 1,051

335  –  – 335
434  –  – 434
150  –  –  150

 Others 447  –  –  447
155  –  –  155

8,712  –  – 8,712

 –  – 15,919 15,919
 –  – 392  392

P42,886 P4,479 P16,311 P63,676

 Trade payables P15,429  P–  P– P15,429
5,388  –  – 5,388

payable 4,956  –  – 4,956
 Retentions payable 95 1,384  – 1,479

1,056  –  – 1,056
955  –  –  955

 Royalty payable 293  –  –  293
264  –  –  264

 Others 1,354  –  – 1,354
590  –  –  590

24,487 67,980 77,824 170,291
536 10,510  – 11,046
193   –  –  193
304 2,057 1,414 3,775

 – 32  –   32
P55,900 P81,963 P79,238 P217,101

Liquidity Gap P P P P
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Up to 1 year Total

 –  –

 –
 –

 –  –
 –  –
 –  –
 –  –
 –  –

 Others  –  –
 –  –

 –  –

 –  –
 –  –

 Trade payables  –  –
 –  –

payable  –  –
 Retentions payable  –

 –  –
 –  –

 –  –
 Royalty payable  –  –
 Others  –  –

 –  –

 – 
–  –

 –  –

( ( ( (
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Currency
2021 US$ P P22

182

US$  (

US$ (
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Up to   > 1 to More than 
Total

December 31, 2021

Carrying value

Change in fair 
value of hedged 

item used for 
measuring 

Hedge 

the income 
statement

Floating rate loans

P32 P32 P32 P–

Change in 
Hedge 

income statement

–
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2021
Balance at beginning of year P (

19
P (

 

 Increase (decrease) in  

2021  P302

 

 Increase (decrease) in  

2021 P1,497
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2021
a.) 

P10,983

10,394

215
 P   

2021
a.) 

 P  
b.) 

215
c.)  P   

2021
P10,983

Company 10,394

215
P

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Segment Information

• 

• 
• 

• 
• 

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



for the period.

Segment Liabilities

December 31, 2021

 Real Estate
 Financial 
 Institution

 Automotive 
 Operations  Infrastructure  Others  Total

P5,607   P– P150,964  P– P10 P156,581
Other income 2,828  – 1,894  – 376 5,098

97
9,443  – 1,525  – 11,065

8,532 9,443 152,858 1,525 386 172,744
467  – 102,492  –  – 102,959

 –  – 32,111  –  – 32,111
Cost of rental 642  –  –  – 13 655
Cost of real estate sales 3,114  –  –  – 9 3,123

3,304  – 9,651  – 500 13,455
7,527  – 144,254  –  522 152,303
1,005 9,443 8,604 1,525 20,441

538 – 1,631  – 19 2,188
1,543 9,443 10,235 1,525 22,629

Interest income 1,587  – 229  – 83   1,899
 –  –
 –  –

1,083 9,443 8,584 1,525 16,070
 –  –

802 9,443 7,144 1,525 14,249

operations  –  –  –  –  –  –
P802 P9,443 P7,144 P1,525 P P14,249

Segment assets P109,973   P135,453  P65,406   P38,194    P48,768   P397,794
Segment liabilities P70,867   P– P37,748   P– P84,100   P192,715
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 Real Estate

  

 Operations  Others  Total
 –  –

Other income  –  –

 –  –

 –  –  –
 –  –  –  –

Cost of rental  –  –  –
Cost of real estate sales  –  –  –

 –  –
 –  –

 –  –

Interest income  –  –
 –  –
 –  –

 –  –

operations  –  –  –  –  –  –
(

Segment assets
Segment liabilities  –  –

 Real Estate
  

 Operations  Others  Total
 –  –  –

Other income  –  –

 –  –

 –  – –
 –  –  – –

Cost of rental  –  –  –  –
Cost of real estate sales  –  –  – –

 –  –
 –  –

 –  –

Interest income  –  –
 –  –
 –  –

 –

operations  –  –  –  –
(

Segment assets
Segment liabilities  –  –
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Geographical Information

2021
P165,662

8,981
P174,643

CONTINGENCIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

2021
P270  –

712
50  –  –
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 Availment  Payment
 Forex  
 movement

 
 of day 1 loss

 of deferred   December 31,  
 2021

 P28,007   P30,020 P  P–  P–  P–  P–  P9,127

 5,012  –  –  –  –  4,568  9,423

 95,429  27,627  –  90  112,755

payable  4,995  –  –  –  5  –  –
 10,065  –  –  –  –  12  –  10,077

 598  –  –  35  –  970  304

 
 2,657  –  –  313  –  1,658
 P146,763  P57,647 P P  P348  P107  P–  P143,344

 of day 1 loss
 of deferred   

( (  –  –  –

 –  –  –

 –  –

payable  –  –  –
 –  –  –  –

 –  –  –  –

 
 –  –  –

( (  –

G T  C A P I T A L  H O L D I N G S  I N C O R P O R A T E D      A N N U A L  R E P O R T  2 0 2 1



Toyota Motor Philippines Corporation 

AXA Philippines

Toyota Financial Services Philippines 
Corporation

Sumisho Motor Finance Corporation 

Premium Warranty Services 

Corporate Directory
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gtcap@gtcapital.com.ph

ir@gtcapital.com.ph

STOCK TRANSFER AGENT

Corporate Information
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43rd Floor, GT Tower International
6813 Ayala Ave. corner H.V. Dela Costa St.

1227 Makati City, Philippines
Tel (+632) 8836-4500
Fax (+632) 8836-4159

gtcap@gtcapital.com.ph
www.gtcapital.com.ph


